. A H

_ \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\

040461

r fapunagy ":‘::’:/—:——'—':'i:_:v;—:;'_":z’-:'g::::_—ﬂ‘ g =

‘ ¥

ﬁ e B noT

I = e : R4 MICROFICHE

L o - ! CONTR
I U N ACVEVERRN i OL LABEL
i o

i .- o ~ i

¥ o ps "’»Z{ oA 5

P ) w’v“;-“,‘,’;_‘:’.‘ b S RN i

# PR GPLSUANEZR N Lonut ) \}

e e T T TR TR RS S !

REGISTRANT'S NAME Jaz;a,,, ,quQ{/ 41;/5/6;7;7664%L' Cfnv ,(ff;f/

*CURRENT ADDRESS 3‘0/;£T. /4%&3/‘ Aﬁ@ré?/ // .
| S €

- /»? 62&&517_/ /fi@%/fi
Lhing_ [lons_ e
J 7

**FORMER NAME
@f@?@ﬁ/ﬁﬂm

=«NEW ADDRESS | . ! -
+ 0V 16 an

= - e e bt = - Th@ ’vn

_ .FI'LE NO. 82~ Z 7 7[ "FISCAL YEAR

'

INDICATE FORM TYPE TO BE USED FOR WORKLOAD ENTRY
W ' :

12G3-48 (INITIAL FILING) [ AR/S (ANNU
i )

12G32BR (REINSTATEMENT) | ‘ STPPI ‘ |
SUPPL (OTHER) Cfr””//

.
DEF 14A (FROXY) } l -
|

oICF/BY: (4 )r
Do : /[//v/d 5/




O 0N
@ O
Y— ()
(N

|
e o

- Stoace,

_ee TRITL Mg

-

INLVY VYW T LU VUTIVVTHGTIV AT pPA T Y BT
.

TRl R




Six months ended
31 December

2002 2001 Change
(HK$m) (HK$m)

Turnover 10,961.6 12,748.6 (14.0%)

Operating Profit (before interest and taxation) 681.3 1,992.9 (65.8%)

Share of Results of Associated Companies and

Jointly Controlled Entities 520.0 1751 197.0%
Profit Attributable to Shareholders 52.5 1,035.1 (94.9%)
Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 229.5 1,148.3 {80.0%)

Total Assets 127,364.5 128,290.9 (0.7%)




To Our Shareholders,

Economic cycle is just like riding on a ferris wheel. Hong Kong has gone through many ups and downs in the past.
Unavoidably, one needs to go through the lowest point before reaching the peak again. Though the global economy
is still vulnerable, | believe Hong Kong will soon recover from the doldrums with the people’s resilience in the face

of economic adversity.

The sluggish economy and high unemployment rate cast a shadow over the property sector. The measures
imposed by the government helps in November 2002 to stabilize the market. Though it may still take a short while
for the market to absorb the unsold inventory, the sector should soon become healthy and prosperous again.

In 2002, China’s economy continues to grow at an enviable pace when compared to other parts of the world. In
addition, China has gained the global recognition by having the successful WTO accession, winning the hosting of
2008 Olympics in Beijing and 2010 World Expo in Shanghai.

Going forward, China will continue to be one of the major economic forces in the world. Hong Kong is uniquely
positioned as the best place to integrate with fast-growing Pearl River Delta Region and to capitalise on the
persistent growth and prospect of China’s economy and market. With the Group’s firm establishment in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, we have a major competitive advantage in terms of being able to grasp future

opportunities to benefit our growth.

Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 March 2003




Managing Director’s Report 15

To Qur Shareholders,

The world is evolving in a rapid pace. Everyone needs to always be prepared for changes. This is also true for a
responsible company like New World. Our recent successful completion of the restructuring turns a new page for
the Group. With the support from you - the Shareholders, the reorganisation unlocks hidden potential of each
subsidiary, creates greater business focus, streamlines organization structure and rematches assets and liabilities
for New World Group.

In Hong Kong, the local economy remains to be weak with the unemployment rate still at a record high level. The
property sector, together with the supporting industries like construction and engineering, is unavoidably adversely
affected. For the period under review, New World Development reported a net profit of HK$52.5 million. The
shortfall against same period in previous year was mainly due to the sharp drop in property sales contribution
because of the absence of the sale of Regent Hotel as well as less property sales booked this period.

The other divisions like property rentals, hotel and restaurants, traditional infrastructure, services, telecommunications
all recorded a healthy growth with current backdrop of economic uncertainty. Going forward, the breadth and
maturity of our own businesses is allowing us to weather the prevalling storms.

At New World, we believe that successful relationships are built on communication and trust. As a public listed
company, we are committed to keeping communication channels open to investors, fund managers, and other
members of the financial and investment community, as well as our employees and members of our greater
community. Guided by this principie, we have dedicated ourselves to be both accessible and informative by
sharing with all parties our progress and achievements, our challenges and strategies, and, most important of all,
our vision and mission.

Dr. Cheng. Kar-Shun, Henry
Managing Director
Hong Kong, 20 March 2003




+| Condensed Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Unaudited
Six months
ended 31 December
2002 2001
Note HK$m HK$m

Turnover 2 10,961.6 12,748.6
Cost of sales (8,397.9) (7,798.7)
Gross profit 2,563.7 49499
Other revenues 20.1 8.2
Other income/(charge) 3 7.0 (882.9)
Selling and marketing expenses {206.9) (194.4)
Administrative expenses (458.6) (467.2)
Other operating expenses (1,244.0) (1,420.7)
Operating profit before financing costs and income 2 681.3 1,992.9
Financing costs {860.0) (867.1)
Financing income 189.5 282.5
Operating profit 4 10.8 1,408.3
Share of results of

Associated companies ’ 235.4 112.6

Jointly controlled entities 284.6 62.5
Profit before taxation 530.8 1,5683.4
Taxation 5 (224.3) (262.6)
Profit after taxation 306.5 1,320.8
Minority interests (254.0) (285.7)
Profit attributable to shareholders 52.5 1,0351
interim dividend 131.5 214.9
Earnings per share 6

Basic HK$0.02 HK$0.49

Fully diluted N/A N/A

Interim dividend per share HK$0.06 HK$0.10
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Unaudited Audited
31 December 30 June
2002 2002
Note HK$m HK$mM
Goodwill 7 132.6 123.3
Fixed assets 8 40,304.2 41,046.1
Associated companies 8,996.8 8,871.9
Jointly controlled entities 28,998.7 28,424.8
Other investments 5,665.4 6,148.0
Long term receivables 1,113.1 948.7
Total non-current assets 85,210.8 85,562.8
Current assets
Properties held for sale 23,594.6 23,2791
Stocks 1,437.2 1,394.0
Current portion of long term receivables 26.1 75.2
Other loans receivable 100.0 365.6
Debtors and prepayments 9 9,5631.9 9,004.3
Cash and bank balances
Restricted 1,7571 2,404.4
Unrestricted 5,706.8 4,689.5
42,153.7 41,2121
Current liabilities
Creditors and accrued charges 10 12,0151 12,347.3
Contracts in progress 484.1 301.9
Deposits received on sale of properties - 34.2
Bank loans and overdrafts
Secured 1,582.9 1,528.2
Unsecured 3,528.5 2,190.1
Other unsecured loans 47.8 47.4
Current portion of long term liabilities 14,350.0 13,752.9
Taxation 690.7 859.6
32,699.1 31,061.6
Net current assets 9,454.6 10,150.5
Employment of funds 94,665.4 95,713.3
Financed by .
Share capital 11 2,166.4 2,166.4
Reserves 51,038.6 51,268.3
Proposed interim dividend 131.5 -
Proposed final dividend 216.6 216.6
Shareholders’ funds 53,553.1 53,651.3
Minority interests 18,054.3 18,069.8
Long term liabilities 12 22,992.8 23,929.3
Deferred taxation 65.2 62.9
Funds employed 94,665.4 95,713.3

| 5
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Unaudited
Six months ended
31 December

2002 2001

HK$m HKSm

Net cash inflow from operating activities 229.5 1,148.3
Net cash used in investing activities (602.6) (3,931.1)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 592.4 (568.0)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 219.3 (3,350.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 3,211.8 6,986.8
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (16.7) (14.7)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 3,414.4 3,621.3

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and bank balances 5,119.3 5,022.1
Bank overdrafts (1,704.9) (1,400.8)

3.414.4 3,621.3




Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity ,

Unaudited
Capital
redemption Asset re-
Share  reserve Share valuation Capital General Retained
capital account premium reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
HKSm HKSm HKSm HK$m HK$m HKSm HKSm HKSm
Balance at 1 July 2002 21664 377 192324 1571252 508.6 5729 159681 538513
Equity securities impairment
loss charged to profit
and loss account - - - 110.3 - - - 110.3
Release of goodwill upon
partial disposal of
ajointly controlled entity - - - - 6.2 - - 6.2
Googdwill impairment loss written back - - - - 2.1 - - 2.1)
Equity securities revaluation surplus
realised upon disposal - - - {162.8) - - - {162.8)
Equity securities revaluation deficit
realised upon disposal - - - 254 - - - 254
Investment revaluation deficit
for the period - - - {(139.1) - - - {(139.1)
Retained profit for the pericd - _ - - - - 525 525
Transfer to capital reserve - - - - 2.1 - 2.1) -
Transfer {0 general raserve - - - - - 96 9.6) -
Translation difference - - - - - - 114 1.4
2,168.4 377 19,2324 14,959.0 564.8 5825 16,010.3 53,553.1
Representing:
Balance at 31 December 2002 2,166.4 377 192324 149590 564.8 5825 156622 53,205.0
2002 final dividend proposed - - - - - - 216.6 216.6
2003 interim dividend proposed - - - - - - 1315 131.5

2,166.4 377 192324 14,9500 564.8 5825 16,0103 53,5631




s | Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Unaudited
Capital
redemption Asset re-
Share  reserve Share valuation Capital General Retained
capital account premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m
Balance at 1 July 2001
as previously reported 2,134.0 377 19,0474 20,0886 475.7 6385 151127 57,4346
Effect of adopting SSAP 3 (revised) - - - - - - 2134 213.4
Balance at 1 July 2001 asrestated  2,134.0 377 19,0474 20,0886 4757 5385 153261 57,648.0
Investment impairment loss charged
to profit and loss account - - - 3.9 - - - 3.9
Disposal of hotel property - - - (2,5016) - - - (2,501.6)
Release of capital reserve upon
disposal of an associated company - - - - (44.5) - - (44.5)
Release of goodwill upon
disposal of subsidiary companies - - - - 156.2 - - 156.2
partial disposal of
an associated company - - - - 1.1 - - 1.1
dispasal of an associated company - - - - 10.9 - - 10.9
Investment revaluation deficit
for the period - - - (103.0) - - - (103.0)
Investrment revaluation deficit written
back on disposal - - - 28.7 - - - 28.7
Retained profitifor the period - - - - - - 1,085.1 1,035.1
Transfer to general reserve - - - - - 19.5 (19.5) -
Translation difference - - - - - - (31.4) (31.4)
2,134.0 377 19,0474 17,5166 539.4 5580 16,3103  58,203.4
Representing;
Balance at 31 December 2001 2,134.0 37.7 19,0474 175166 5304 558.0 15,8820 557751
2001 Final dividend proposed - - - - - - 2134 2134
2002 Interim dividend proposed - - - - - - 214.9 2148
2,134.0 37.7 190474 175168 599.4 558.0 16,310.3 56,203.4




Notes to Condensed Accounts s

Basis of preparation and accounting policies

These unaudited condensed consolidated accounts are prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice (“SSAP”) 25, “Interim Financial Reporting”, issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (*HKSA”).

These condensed consolidated accounts should be read in conjunction with the 2002 annual accounts.

The accounting policies and methods of computation used in the preparation of these condensed consolidated accounts
are consistent with those used in the annual accounts for the year ended 30 June 2002 except that the Group has
changed certain of its accounting policies following its adoption of the following SSAPs issued by HKSA which are
effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2002: |

SSAP 1 (Revised) : “Presentation of Financial Statements”
SSAP 11 (Revised) : “Foreign Currency Translation”

SSAP 15 (Revised) : ‘Cash Flow Statements”

SSAP 33 : “Discontinuing Operations”

SSAP 34 : “Employee Benefits”

A summary of their major effects is as follows;

SSAP 1 (Revised): Presentation of financial statements

SSAP 1 prescribes the basis for the presentation of accounts and sets out guidelines for their structure and minimum
requirements for the content thereof. The main revision to this SSAP is to change the requirements from presenting a
statement of recognised gains and losses to a statement of changes in equity. The condensed consolidated statement
of changes in equity for the current interim period and the comparative figures have been presented in accordance with
the revised SSAP.

SSAP 11 (Revised): Foreign currency translation

The balance sheet of subsidiary companies, jointly controlled entities and associated companies expressed in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date whilst the profit and loss is translated
at an average rate. Exchange differences are dealt with as @ movement in reserves.

In prior periods, the profit and loss of foreign enterprises was translated at closing rate. This is a change in accounting
policy, however, the translation of the profit and loss of foreign enterprises in prior periods has not been restated as the
Directors consider that this would involve undue delay and expense.

SSAP 15 (Revised): Cash flow statements

SSAP 15 prescribes the provision of information about the histarical changes in cash and cash equivalents by means of
a cash flow statement which classifies cash flows during the period into operating, investing and financing activities. The
condensed consolidated cash flow statement for the current interim period and the comparative figures have been
presented in accordance with the revised SSAP.



.ol Notes to Condensed Accounts

Basis of preparation and accounting policies (con't)
SSAP 33: Discontinuing operations

SSAP 33 prescribes the basis for reporting information about discontinuing/discontinued operations. This SSAP has had
ne major impact on these condensed consolidated accounts.

SSAP 34: Employee benefits

SSAP 34 prescribes the accounting treatment and disclosures for employee benefits. This SSAP has had no major

impact on these condensed consolidated accounts,

The adoption of these new SSAPs had no material effect on the Group's results.

Segment information

Group turnover represents all revenues from rental, property sales, construction and engineering, hotel and restaurant
operations, infrastructure operations, telecommunication services, department store operations, financial services, property

management, security service, transportation and other services.
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the period by business and geographical segments is as follows;
(a) Business segment

Six months ended 31 December 2002

Construction
Property and  Hotel and Infra-  Telecom- Elimin-
Rental sales engineering restaurant  structure munication Others ations Consolidated
HKSm HKSm HKSm HKSm HKSm HKSm HKSm HKSm HKSm

External sales 789.5 4878 4,228.5 8331 265.3 1,381.6 29758 - 10,9616
Intra-segment sales 53.2 - 451.1 - - 5.0 55.1 (564.4) -
Total turnover 842.7 4878 4,679.6 833.1 265.3 1,386.6 3,030.9 (564.4) 10,961.6
Segment results 459.7 (37.0) 123.7 153.8 104.7 92,6 20.7 918.2
Other income 70
Unallocated corporate expenses (243.9)
Operating profit before financing

costs and income 681.3
Financing costs . (860.0)
Financing income 189.5
Operating profit 10.8
Share of resutts of

Associated companies 298 45.3 136 8.3) 151.7 - 33 2354

Jointly controlled entities 29.1 (193.6) 0.1) 156 4445 - (10.9) 2846
Profit before taxation 530.8
Taxation (224.3)
Profit after taxation 306.5
Minority interests (254.0)
Profit atiributable to shareholders 52.5




(b)

Notes to Condensed Accounts

Six months ended 31 December 2001

Construction
Property and  Hoteland Infra-  Telecom- Elimin-
Rental sales engineering restaurant  structure munication Others ations Consolidated
HKSm HKSm HK$m HKSm HKSm HKSm HKSm HKSm HKSm
External sales 760.1 37199 3,200.7 7980 3289 13417 2598.3 - 12,7488
Intra-segment sales 813 - 7121 03 - 38 534 (850.4) -
Total turnover 8414 37199 39128 7983 3289 1,345.3 2,652.4 (85043 12,7486
Segment results 4468 20735 1999 1193 1026 6.3) 1719 31077
Other charge (8829)
Unallocated corporate expenses (231.9)
Operating profit before financing
costs and income 19928
Financing costs (867.1)
Financing income 2825
Operating profi 1,408.3
Share of results of
Associated companies 262 (87.4) 186 (14) 109.7 - 3.1 1126
Jointly controlled entities 37 (263.1) 87 116 3366 - (85.0) 625
Profit before taxation 15834
Taxation (262.8)
Profit after taxation 13208
Minority interests (285.7)
Profit attributable to shareholders 1,035.1
Geographical segments
Operating
profit/(loss)
before
financing costs
Turnover and income
HKS$m HKSm
Six months ended 31 December 2002
Hong Kong and Southeast Asia 8,480.6 991.7
Mainland China 2,481.0 (310.4)
10,961.6 681.3
Six months ended 31 December 2001
Hong Kong and Southeast Asia 10,821.2 1,881.1
Mainland China 1,827.4 111.8
12,748.6 1,992.9

Sales are based on the country in which the customers is located.

The turnover and operating profit before financing costs and income derived from the Group’s activities in Southeast
Asia comprised less than 10% of the Group’s turnover and operating profit before financing costs and income.

11




12 Notes to Condensed Accounts

Six Months ended
31 December

2002 2001
HK$m HKSm
3. Other income/(charge)
Amortisation of goodwill:
A jointly controlled entity 0.5) -
Subsidiary companies (4.5) -
Dilution loss on partial disposal of a subsidiary company (0.3) (75.3)
Write back of impairment loss of:
Goodwill 2.1 -
Other investments 2.2 -
Impairment loss on:
Fixed assets (35.0) -
Other investments (180.9) -
Loss on disposal of:
Jointly controlled entities - (124.0)
Listed shares - (60.7)
Cther investments (41.8) (13.7)
Fixed assets written off - (38.0)
Profit on disposal of:
Associated companies - 113.0
Jointly controlled entities 9.9 1.9
Other investments 280.5 -
Subsidiary companies 17.5 18.9
Provision for advances to joint ventures - (544.3)
Provision for diminution in value of properties held for sale - 58.0)
Provision for investment in:
Deposit paid for joint venture (18.6) -
Jointly controlled entities (76.9) -
Properties held for sale (2.6) -
Unlisted shares (4.0) (128.2)
Surplus on liquidation of a subsidiary company 16.8 -
Write back provision for diminution in value of:
Jointly controlled entities 20.3 -
Properties held for sale 22.8 25.5
7.0 (882.9)
4. Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging the following:
Cost of inventories sold 1,683.6 1,775.2
Depreciation
Leased fixed assets 21.2 22.5
Owned fixed assets 583.6 590.5

Fixed assets written off - 38.0
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Taxation

Six months ended
31 December

2002 2001
HK$m HK$m
Company and subsidiary companies
Hong Kong profits tax 117.7 173.0
Overseas taxation 8.8 4.3
Deferred taxation 2.2 15.0
Associated companies
Hong Kong profits tax 14.6 10.2
Overseas taxation 24.0 21.2
Jointly controlled entities
Hong Kong profits tax 156.7 7.4
Overseas taxation 41.3 31.5
2243 262.6

Hong Kong profits tax is provided at the rate of 16% (2001: 16%) on the estimated assessable profits for the period. Tax
on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated taxable profits for the period at the rate of taxation prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

Earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to shareholders of HK$52.5 million (2001:
HK$1,035.1 million) and the weighted average number of 2,166.4 million (2001: 2,134.0 million shares) in issue during

the period.

The conversion of the outstanding convertible bonds does not have any dilutive effective on the earnings per share for
the current and previous period.

Goodwill
As at As at
31 December 30 June
2002 2002
HK$m HK$m
Balance at beginning of the period 123.3 -
Acquisition of interests in subsidiary companies 13.8 131.8
Amortisation charge (4.5) (8.5)

Balance at end of the period 132.6 1233
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8. Fixed assets
Toll roads, Assets
Investment Hotel Landand  bridges and Other under
properties  properties building  port facilities assets construction Total
HK$m HK$m HK$m HKSm HK$m HK$m HK$m
Net book value at 1 July 2002 15,752.6 6.722.0 33275 5,624.1 5,247 1 4.372.8 41,0464
Transfation difference - - (14.3) - 2.4) - (16.7)
Disposal ofisubsidiary companies - - - - - (1,512.0) (1,512.0)
Transfer from joint development project - - 446.2 - - - 446.2
Additions 8.0 - 10.6 37 3829 567.7 gr0.9
Transfer from properties under development 31,1 - - - - - 311
Disposals - - (1.6) (12) (40.0) - (42.8)
Reclassffication 369.8 - 0.7 - 286.7 (657.2) -
Depreciation, amortisation,
impairment and other movements - - (66.0) (1104) (427.2) (15.0) (618.6)
Net book value at 31 December 2002 16,159.5 8,722.0 3,703.1 55162 54471 2,756.3 40,304.2
9. Debtors and prepayments

Debtors and prepayments include trade debtors, amounts advanced to investee companies, deposits and prepayments.
The Group has various credit policies for different business operations depending on the requirements of the markets
and business in which the subsidiary companies operate. Sales proceeds receivables from sale of properties and retention
money receivables in respect of construction and engineering services are settled in accordance with the terms of

respective contracts, Ageing analysis of trade debtors is as follows:

As at As at

31 December 30 June

2002 2002

HK$m HKSm

— Current to 30 days 2,878.9 2,455.0
- 31 to 60 days 372.8 240.8
- Qver 60 days 1,348.6 1,958.2
4,600.3 4,654.0




10.

11.

Creditors and accrued charges

Notes to Condensed Accounts

Included in creditors and accrued charges are trade creditors

with their ageing analysis as follows:

As at As at
31 December 30 June
2002 2002
HK$m HK$m
- Current to 30 days 2,143.8 4,080.4
- 3110 60 days 2442 272.7
- Over 60 days 3,999.4 2,178.6
6,387.4 6,531.7
Share capital
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 30 June 30 June
2002 2002 2002 2002
No. of shares HK$m No. of shares HK$m
{million}) {million)
Authorised:
Shares of HK$1.00 each
Balance at beginning and
end of the period 2,500.0 2,500.0 2,500.0 2,500.0
Issued and fully paid:
Shares of HK$1.00 each
Balance at beginning
of the period 2,166.4 2,166.4 2,134.0 2,134.0
Issued as scrip dividends - - 32.4 32.4
Balance at end of the period 2,166.4 2,166.4 2,166.4 2,166.4




161 Notes to Condensed Accounts

12,

Long term liabilities

As at As at
31 December 30 June
2002 2002
HK$m HK$mM
Bank loans
Secured 10,317.2 9,151.4
Unsecured 17,857.0 19,272.7
Other secured loans wholly payable within five years - 250.0
Other unsecured loans
Wholly repayable within five years 551.0 551.0
Not wholly repayable within five years 60.7 59.5
Obligations under finance leases wholly payable within five years 169.5 115.1
28,955.4 29,399.7
Convertible bonds 4,033.1 4,063.5
Loans from minority shareholders 2,538.5 2,546.6
Deferred income 693.9 642.7
Long term accounts payable 1,121.9 1,029.7
37,342.8 37,682.2
Amounts repayable within one year included in current liabilities (14,350.0) (13,752.9)
22,992.8 23,929.3
Obligations
Secured Unsecured Other Other under
bank bank secured unsecured finance
loans loans loans loans leases Total
HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HKS$m HK$m
The maturity of long term borrowings
at 31 December 2002 is as follows:
Of less than one year 1,871.8 10,624.0 - 351.0 66.1 12,912.9
Of more than one year, but not
exceeding two years 2,182.8 1,083.3 - 200.0 79.1 3,545.2
Ofimore than two years, but not
exceeding five years 6,087.4 6,149.7 - - 24.3 12,261.4
Ofimore than five years 175.2 - - 60.7 ~ 235.9
10,317.2 17,857.0 - 611.7 169.5 28,955.4
The maturity of long term borrowings
at 30 June 2002 is as foliows:
Ofless than one year 931.4 10,3711 250.0 351.0 39.3 11,942.8
Ofimore than one year, but not
exceeding two years 1,765.8 2,136.9 - 200.0 55.4 4,158.1
Of more than two years, but not
exceeding five years 6,041.6 6,764.7 - - 20.4 12,826.7
Of more than five years 412.6 - - 58.5 - 472.1
9,151.4 19,2727 250.0 610.5 1151 29,399.7




Notes to Condensed Accounts

13. Commitments

As at As at
31 December 30 June
2002 2002
HKS$m HK$m
{a)  Capital commitments
{i Contracted but not provided for
Fixed assets 531.5 713.3
An associated company - 49.5
Jointly controlled entities 209.5 258.6
741.0 1,021.4
(i)  Authorised but not contracted for
Fixed assets 261.6 248.3
Jointly controlled entities - £628.8
261.6 877.1
(b)  The Group’s share of capital commitments committed by the jointly
controlled entities not included above are as follows: ‘
Contracted but not provided for 171.0 171.8
Authorised but not contracted for 66.0 89.4
237.0 261.2
(¢}  Commitments under operating leases payable
The future aggregate lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:
Land and buildings
In the first year 316.5 3512
In the second to fifth year inclusive 490.5 664.9
After the fifth year 1,271.8 1,755.1
2,078.8 2,771.2
Other equipment
In the first year 24.9 21.2
In the second to fifth year inclusive 8.2 19.7
2,111.9 2,812.1
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Notes to Condensed Accounts

13.

14.

Commitments (con't)

(d) Asat31 December 2002, the Group had issued performance guaraniees amounting to approximately HK$340.6
miflion (30 June 2002: HK$316.2 million), in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating to the
mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of property projects developed by a subsidiary and certain jointly
controlled entities of the Group. Pursuant to the terms of the performance guarantees, upon default in mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals together
with accrued interest owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks and the Group is entitled to take over the
legal title and possession of the related properties.

(e) A subsidiary company and certain jointly controlled entities are parties to agreements with third parties in respect
of the joint development of Container Terminal 9 in Hong Kong, the related berth swap arrangement and the
funding thereof. The Group’s attributable share of capital commitments as at 31 December 2002 has been disclosed
ini () above.

One of the jointly controlled entities has obtained banking facilities to finance its share of development cost at
Container Terminal 9. The Group has given guarantee in respect of the banking facilities and is included in note 14.

In the event of default of any of the other shareholders of the jointly controlled entities, independent third parties,
the relevant subsidiary companies and jointly controlled entities will be required to provide additional funds for the
project. The Group has given guarantees in respect of these obligations of the subsidiary companies and jointly
controlled entities to provide additional funds. If the Group is required to fulfil its obligations under the guarantees,
the maximum amount of the additional commitment assumed, in addition to the Group’s share of the capital
commitments as disclosed above, will be HK$1,572.0 million (30 June 2002: HK$1,482.0 million) out of which
approximately HK$928.0 million (30 June 2002: HK$876.0 million) has been counter-indemnified by an associated
company.

Contingent liabilities

As at As at
31 December 30 June
2002 2002
HK$m HK$m

Guarantees for performance bonds in respect of:
Construction contracts undertaken by the Group 100.8 1,140.4
Others 3224 384.7

Guarantees for credit facilities granted to:

Associated companies 1,294.2 1,188.1
Investee companies included under other investments 82.2 55
Jointly controlled entities 4,784.4 4,059.6
Indemnity to non-wholly owned subsidiary companies for PRC tax liabilities 1,649.7 2,135.3
8,233.7 8,913.6

The Group is in legal disputes with a joint venture partner in respect of certain joint property development projects in the
People’s Repubilic of China. The Group has taken legal actions against this joint venture partner who has also taken
counter actions against the Group.
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Contingent liabilities (con't)

The Group is also in legal dispute with another joint venture partner in respect of a hotel project in Malaysia. The disputes
are still at the pre-trial stage.

The Directors have obtained legal advice on the above matters and are of the opinion that the above matters will not have
material adverse impact on the financial position of the Group.

Related party transactions

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions during the period carried out in the normal course of
the Group's business:

Six months ended
31 December

2002 2001
HK$m HKSm
Transaction with affilated companies
Provision of contracting work service 321.3 426.4
Interest income 71.8 138.1
Management fee income 16.6 18.7
Transaction with other related parties
Rental income 17.9 15.4

These related party transactions were conducted in accordance with the terms as disclosed in the last annual accounts.

Practice note 19 of the listing rules — Supplementary information

In accordance with the requirements under part 3.3 of Practice Note 19 of the Listing Rules, the Directors of the Company
reported below the details of advances to, and guarantees given for the benefit of, its associated companies and jointly
controlled entities (collectively as “affiliated companies”) as at 31 December 2002.

In aggregate the Group had advanced an amount of HK$21,815.7 million (30 June 2002: HK$21,739.0 million) to
affiliated companies, guaranteed bank loans and other credit facilities for the benefit of the affiliated companies in the
amount of HK$6,078.6 million (30 June 2002: HK$4,218.7 million) and contracted to further provide an aggregated
amount of HK$2,410.8 million (30 June 2002: HK$1,231.6 million) in capital and loans to affiliated companies. The
advances are unsecured, repayable on demand and are interest free except for aggregate amount of HK$2,186.7 million
(30 June 2002: HK$3,200.0 million) which bear interest at variable rates ranging from the Hong Kong prime rate to 2%
above the Hong Kong prime rate per annum, HK$6,275.3 million (30 June 2002: HK$6,037.1 million) which bear interest
at fixed rates ranging from 4% to 15% per annum and HK$19.0 million (30 June 2002: HK$19.0 million) which bear
interest at fixed rates per annum and was subordinated. Contracted capital and loan contributions to affiliated companies
would be funded by proceeds from internal resources and bank and other borrowings of the Group.
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Practice note 19 of the listing rules - Supplementary information (con’t)

The above financial assistance given to the affiliated companies, in aggregate, represented 56.8% (30 June 2002: 50.8%)
of the consolidated net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2002. No single entity received financial assistance from
the Group which exceeds 25% of the consolidated net assets of the Group.

In addition, in accordance with the requirements under paragraph 3.10 of Practice Note 19 of the Listing Rules, the
Company is required to include in its interim report a proforma combined balance sheet of its affiliated companies which
would include significant balance sheet classifications and state the attributable interest of the Company in the affiliated
companies. The Company has numerous affiliated companies and the Directors are of the opinion that it is not practical
nor meaningful to prepare a proforma combined balance sheet and such information may be misleading. The Company
made an application to, and received a waiver from , the Stock Exchange to provide the following statement as an

alternative,

As at 31 December 2002, the combined indebtedness, capital commitments and contingent liabilities as reported by
such affiliated companies (including amounts owing to the Group) amounted to approximately HK$68,639.1 million (30
June 2002: HK$69,331.6 million), HK$3,004.3 million (30 June 2002: HK$3,339.7 million) and HK$3,778.3 (30 June
2002: HK$1,371.0 million) respectively.

Post balance sheet event

On 21 October 2002, the Company together with its subsidiary companies, New World Infrastructure Limited (“NWI”)
and Pacific Ports Company Limited (“PPC”), jointly announced that a recrganisation {“the Reorganisation”) of certain
subsidiary companies of the Group. The Reorganisation was effect by various transactions including, inter alia, the

followings:

(@  the acquisition of the traditional infrastructure assets by PPC from NWI for an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$10,227.0 million which is to be satisfied by cash, the issue of PPC shares and an undertaking
by PPC to pay certain liabilities of NWI;

(b)  the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of New World Services Limited {“NWS") by PPC from the Company
and other shareholders of NWS for an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$10,913.0 million which is to

be satisfied by the issue of PPC shares; and

{c)  the distribution of all PPC shares held by NWI to its shareholders in the ratio of approximately 5.87 PPC share to
one NWI share.

The Reorganisation was completed on 29 January 2003. Following the completion of the Reorganisation, the Group
owned'approximately 54% in PPC and approximately 54% in NWI. The company name of PPC has been changed to
“NWS Holdings Limited” with effect from 29 January 2003.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current period presentation,




Interim Dividend

The directors have declared an interim dividend for the financial year ending 30 June 2003 in scrip form equivalent
to HK$0.06 per share with a cash option to shareholders registered on 16 April 2003.

Subject to the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) granting
listing of and permission to deal in the new shares, each shareholder will be allotted fully paid shares having an
aggregate market value equal to the total amount which such shareholders could elect to receive in cash and that
they be given the option to elect to receive payment in cash of HK$0.06 per share instead of the allotment of
shares. Full details of the interim scrip dividend will be set out in a letter to be sent to shareholders together with
a form of election for cash on or about 25 April 2003.

Book Close Date

Book close dates (both days inclusive): 10 April 2003 to 16 April 2003
Latest time to lodge transfer with Share Registrar: 4:30 p.m. on 9 April 2003
Address of Share Registrar: Tengis Limited,

Ground Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre,
56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its listed securities during the six months ended 31 December 2002.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiary companies has purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the six months ended 31 December 2002.

Code of Best Practice

None of the directors of the Company is aware of any information that would reasonably indicate that the Company
is not, or was not for any part of the accounting period covered by this interim report, in compliance with the Code
of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange.

Details of Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2002, the Group's fixed assets and properties held for sale of HK$12,514.6 million (30 June
2002: HK$11,726.2 million), and HK$1,571.1 million (30 June 2002: HK$948.6 million) respectively have been
pledged as securities for credit facilities granted to the Group.

The Group’s interests in two jointly controlled entities have been pledged as part of the securities to secure

syndicated loan facilities granted to the jointly controlled entities.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the unaudited interim
accounts for the six months ended 31 December 2002 with the directors.
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.| Business Review

Financial Highlights (HK$million)

1H FY2003

Profit Attributable

Company to Shareholders
New World China Land Limited 171
New World Services Limited 409.8
New World Infrastructure Limited (98.2)

Rental
For the six months ended 31 December 2002, segment contribution from property rentals was HK$518.6 million,

an increase of nearly 9% over the same period last year.

Hong Kong Property Rentals

Shopping Malls

The Group's major shopping malls, including Discovery Park Shopping Mall, Telford Plaza, Mei Foo Shops and
Pearl City, all attained virtually full occupancy. As at the end of December 2002, the New World Centre achieved

over 90% occupancy, with The Amazon over 84% leased.

Currently, the flow of visitor traffic within the New World Centre continues to be hampered due to reduced pedestrian
flow resulting from ongoing construction of the KCR East Tsim Sha Tsui Station and the associated road works
nearby. Continuous promotional activities have been held in an effort to attract the public. However, it is expected
that visitor traffic will be restored to normal in mid-2004 when all the excavation and construction work has been

completed.

In 2002, we created “The Amazon” theme in the Palace Mall. Together with the opening of Teddy Bear Kingdom,
a teddy bear theme park, at the basement level in August 2002, visitor traffic to the Palace Mall has improved. In
2003, we will concentrate on securing potential tenants specialising in children’s apparel, toys and gifts in order to

make The Amazon one of the main attractions in Tsim Sha Tsui.

Offices
During the period under review, despite the ample supply of office space in Central and neighbouring areas, the
Group has maintained the occupancy of New World Tower, New World Centre office, Manning House and Methodist

House. However, there is downward pressure on the rental side.




Business Review

Rental (con't)

Hong Kong Property Rentals (con't)

Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre

During the period under review, the Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre ("HKCEC") held a total of 861
events with over 2.7 million visitors. Major international events included ITU Telecom Asia 2002 and the Sixteenth
World Congress of Accountants.

HKCEC was named the “Best Overseas Conference Centre” for the ninth consecutive year by the United Kingdom-
based “Meetings & Incentive Travel Magazine”. This honour is one amongst the many achievements accomplished
by our diversified businesses and HKCEC is expected to provide a substantial and steady income stream to the
Group.

Mainland China Property Rentals
The decline in Mainland China property rentals was mainly duge to the initial launch of our newly completed investment
property, Ramada Plaza, located in Shanghal.

During the period under review, New Warld China Land Limited (‘NWCL") completed construction of 148,815 sq
m of investment properties in Guangzhou, Shanghai and Dalian.

Investment Properties under NWCL completed during the first haif of FY2003

Total NWCL’s
GFA attributable
Projects Usage (sgq m) interest
Dalian New World Piaza Phase |l G, Oth 68,275 88.0%
Shanghai Ramada Plaza R, C 61,651 61.8%
Guangzhou New World Oriental Garden Phase | C 18,889 100.0%
Total g 148,815
R : Residential
C : Commercial
Oth Others
Property Sales

Hong Kong Property Sales

In 2002, the property market remained soft due to the prevailing weak Hong Kong economy with primary sales
seeing a pick up only towards the end of the year. Our successful launch of Queen's Terrace in December last year
drew substantial public interest and sparked the subsequent successiul sales of several major property development

projects in Hong Kong.

23




241 Business Review

Property Sales (con’t)

Hong Kong Property Sales (con't)

During the period under review, the Group's attributable share of property sales revenues, including those from
associated companies and joint ventures, amounted to over HK$ 1,600 million. This sum represents proceeds
from sales of residential projects including the Monte Carlton and Sereno Verde Phase | & I, and the Group's share
of sales of residential flats in Tung Chung Crescent, Seaview Crescent, The Parcville, Sky Tower, Bijou Apartments

and Queen'’s Terrace.
The Group now has 40 property development projects with a total attributable GFA of 13.1 million sqg ft. At
present, the Group’s agricultural land bank amounts to 22.5 million sqg ft. This includes the expected 10.5 million

sq ft agricultural land conversion reflected in the following development schedule.

Summary of development schedule

Site area Total GFA NWD’s attributable
Development schedule {sg ft) {sq f) GFA (sgft) No. of projects
Urban development 4,048,799 13,755,251 7,502,752 27
Agricuttural land 10,520,304 9,398,087 5,622,733 13
Total 14,569,103 23,153,338 13,125,485 40

Agriculture land bank by location

Total site area of
agricultural land included

NWD’s attributable in development
Location Total land area (sg ft) land area (sq ft) schedule (sq ft)
Yuen Long 14,555,000 13,071,100 7,646,304
Fanling 2,360,000 2,360,000 200,000
Shatin / TaiPo 3,500,000 2,614,000 1,290,000
Sai Kung 1,850,000 1,688,000 1,384,000
Tuen Mun 120,000 120,000 -
Total 22,485,000 19,853,100 10,520,304

With 40 development projects in the pipeling, the Group will take a prudent approach to consider any new
projects.

Mainland China Property Sales

There was a decline in Mainland China property sales mainly due to the slight delay in the completion of the
existing phase of Wuhan Changging Garden. In the first half of FY2002, Wuhan Changging Garden contributed
87% of AOP. Excluding this contribution, the AOP contribution from property sales has actually grown 87%
against the same period last year. In fact, 37% by saleable area of the projects completed in the period under

review were sold as at the end of December 2002.
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Property Sales (con't)

Mainland China Property Sales (con’t)

For projects completed on or before FY2002, we launched a special sale which resulted in a 67% increase in the
saleable area of inventory sold against the same period last year. The inventory clearance has generated an
inevitable negative contribution as a result of a price-cut in inventory, especially in Guangzhou.

During the period under review, NWCL completed the construction of around 330,000 sg m of development
properties. The completed properties include 12 development projects in Beijing, Shenyang, Jinan, Hefei,

Guangzhou, and the Pearl River Delta.

Development projects under NWCL completed during the first half of FY2003

Total NWCL’s

GFA attributable
Projects Usage (sg m) interest
Beijing New World Garden Phase | 0O, Oth 36,218 70%
Shenyang New World Garden Phase (B R, Oth 19,102 90%
Jinan Sunshine Garden Phase | R 18,382 65%
Hefei New World Garden Phase || R, C, Oth 19,800 60%
Guangzhou Covent Garden Phase 1B R 10,000 60%
Guangzhou Fangcao Garden Phase | R 48,202 40%
Guangzhou Dong Yi Garden Phase Il R, Oth 57,929 100%
Guangzhou Park Paradise Phase lI1A R 42,921 60%
Huiyang Palm Island Gof Resort Phase i R 1,505 34%
Hulyang Palm Island Golf Resort Phase Il R 18,732 34%
Zhuhai New World Riviera Garden Phase | R 10,311 60%
Haikou New World Garden Phase | R 50,230 60%
Total 333,332

Construction and Engineering

As at 31 December 2002, Hip Hing Construction Company Limited has HK$19,049 million of contracts on hand
and new contracts awarded in the past six months amounted to HK$1,200 million. NWS Engineering Limited had
HK$5,152 million of contracts on hand.

Hotel and Restaurant

Segment contribution from NWD's hotel and restaurant operations increased by 24% to HK$161.1 million due to
higher occupancy, higher average room rates and stringent cost controls.
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Hotel and Restaurant (con’t)

The Group currently has a total of 14 hotels in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Southeast Asia. Overall, during the
period under review, the operating performance amongst our hotel portfolio has shown improvement. In particular,
the Group’s three hotels in Hong Kong achieved higher occupancy and higher average room rates due to an
increased number of business travellers attending international conferences such as ITU Telecom Asia 2002 and

an increase in visitors from Mainland China.

Infrastructure

The Group's traditional infrastructure operations consist of three major groups, ports and cargo handling, roads
and bridges, and energy and water. Segment contribution from NWD's traditional infrastructure operations increased
by 28% to over HK$700 million. Traditional infrastructure has benefited from the rise in car ownership, high
economic growth and increased inter-provincial trade in Mainland China. Our investments in infrastructure are

expected to continue to generate stable revenue for the Group.

Ports and Cargo Handling

Hong Kong’s container throughput rebounded in year 2002, by capturing the strong surge in exports in South
China. Hong Kong operations continue to be key profit contributors for the Group. In fact, during the first half of
FY2003, Pacific Ports Company Limited, (renamed NWS Holdings Limited on 29 January 2003) reported a net
profit of HK$174.7 million. The growth momentum for our ports and cargo-handling business in Hong Kong is
expected to be sustainable given the strong export trade growth in Guangdong and the capacity constraints of
the Shenzhen terminals. The Group’s Mainland China cperations are spread over strategic locations in the North,
East and South. Our investments in cities like Xiamen are expanding at a rapid pace and will become part of the

growth engine of the Group.

Roads and Bridges

The Group-has a total of 32 road projects covering 1,114 kilometres which span four provinces (Guangdong,
Guangxi, Shanxi and Hubei), one municipality (Tianjin) and one Special Administrative Region (Hong Kong). During
the period under review, our roads portfolio had an segment contribution of HK$161 million, a 10% increase
versus the same period last year. Guangzhou City Northern Ring Road remains an important contributor. The
segment contribution from our bridges portfolio, which includes four bridge projects, declined 80% versus the
same period last year to HK$6.7 milion duge to regulations effective 1 October 2002 which prohibited the collection

of bridge tolls in Wuhan. We are currently in negotiation with the Wuhan government for compensation.

Energy and Water Treatment

In 2002, Guangdong and Sichuan provinces both experienced double-digit economic growth higher than the
national average due to strong economic development and more affordable electricity prices. Despite on-grid
tariff reductions faced by coal-fired power plants in Guangdong and rising fuel costs, our investment still delivered

promising results with moderate growth due to our stringent cost contral.

During the period under review, two additional water projects were put into operation, namely Qingdao and
Chongaing. The Group currently owns and manages water treatment plants throughout Greater China which
have a total capacity of 3 million cubic meters per day. As compared to the same period last year, the segment

contribution from our energy and water treatment portfolio increased by 23% to HK$219 million.




Business Review

Telecommunications

Our telecommunications businesses, New World Mobility (“NWM") and New World Telecommunication (“NWT"),
achieved a net profit of HK$84.6 million for the period under review. Now that these businesses have progressed
beyond the investment/start-up phase and given their innovative services and stringent cost controls, they are
expected to gradually increase their contribution to the Group going forward.

New World Mobility

As at 31 December 2002, the subscriber base of NWM had grown to over 820,000 from 720,000 in June 2002.
As at the end of March 2003, the subscriber base had already surpassed 900,000, representing a 25% growth
since June 2002.

During the period under review, NWM successfully repositioned itself from a network operator to a service provider
by partnering with various content providers to bring innovative mobile data services, such as Twins Mobile and

HomeCare Mabile Viewing Service to its customers.

NWM has also put a strong focus on providing tailored service for different customer segments. In light of the
highly competitive market, Priority-One Program was launched to enhance customer loyalty of high-value customers
by offering personalised customer services.

As a committed service provider, a new switch centre equipped with state-of-the-art equipment has been
commissioned in February 2003.

New World Telecom

In December 2002, New World Telephone Limited changed its name to “New World Telecommunications Limited”
to reflect its “Go Beyond Hong Kong” business vision, which signifies NWT’s commitment to providing a
comprehensive range of world-class services to its global customers and carrier partners. Riding on its success in
the IDD market, NWT has strategically evolved itself into an international telecom network service provider capturing
significant business opportunities arising from the dynamic growth of data traffic, broadband connectivity, multimedia
and content services throughout the Asia Pacific region and beyond. NWT has secured facilities-based telecom
licenses and established new branch offices as well as Point of Presence (POP) network facilities in Mainland
China (Beljing, Shenzhen), Taiwan and the United States.

For fixed-lines services, NWT has over 124,000 subscribers as at the end of December 2002, representing a 25%
growth in 8 months. NWT’s IDD 009 international calling service covers over 260 countries/destinations around
the world. Total traffic volume grew 60%, reaching 383 million minutes during the period under review,

NWT has just launched “Vitamin®, a 12 Mbps ultra-speed symmetric broadband service powered by Cisco Systems
technology and deployed over the NWT Next-Generation Network (NGN). The launch of “Vitamin” represents yet
another pioneering initiative in NWT’s commitment to providing best-in-class telecommunication services to the
Hong Kong market alongside its NGN services which were rolled-out in December 2002.
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Business Review

Others
T™T

On the operational front, the Group's TMT assets continued to make substantial progress in a number of business
areas. New technologies were introduced and tested, contracts were signed with leading enterprises in Mainland
China, the consolidation process moved ahead and new synergies between New World Group companies were

explored.

Currently, the portfolio is composed of a broad range of TMT-related projects at various levels of the business
cycle, Many existing telecommunications and media enterprises are now in a paosition te launch products into the
market. Meanwhile, research and development across all segments will deliver new products and services to a

market with an enormous appetite for technology.

New World Department Store

As at the end of 2002, New World Department Stores Limited ("NWDS") had 14 department stores and 5
supermarkets with a total GFA of over 4.1 million sq ft in Hong Kong and in 9 cities in Mainland China. During the
period under review, NWDS opened the 320,000 sq ft Dalian New World Department Store which includes a
20,000 sqg ft supermarket. In addition, an expansion project has been completed at the Harbin New World
Department Store.

Total sales at these stores during the pericd under review amounted to HK$1.3 billion. Even excluding the Tianjin
Xin An Shopping Centre, the Shanghai Trendy Plaza and the new Dalian store which had not been completed in
the same period last year, the total sales increase was 32% against last year. In order to further capture the
substantial growing demand in China, Nanjing New World Department Store is scheduled to open in 2003.

New World China Enterprises

New World China Enterprises Projects Limited (“NWCEP”) focuses on four core business sectors in the Mainland
China market: healthcare, consumer products, building materials, and automotive mid-stream and down-stream
services. Investments to date cover more than ten projects.

NWCEP is also the project manager for New World Liberty China Ventures Limited, established in December
2000 as a strategic alliance with Liberty Mutual Group of the United States and other investors including lead
participation from the Asian Development Bank. 60% of the initial US$150 million capital has been allocated to
high-growth, smali- to medium-sized enterprises in Mainland China. The mission of NWCERP is to help increase
their competitiveness and profitability by initiating good corporate governance and management practices, thus

bringing them in line with international standards. Many of the invested businesses are already contributing profits.



Liquidity and Capital Resources

DUsliCoo MeVioW

As at 31 December 2002, the Group’s consolidated net debt amounted to HK$30,683.6 million (30 June 2002:
HK$30,135.0 million), translating into a gearing ratio of approximately 57%. Debt maturity profile is set out in Note

12 to the accounts.

The Group has maintained a balanced debt profile with adequate risk diversification through a preferred mix of

fixed and floating rate debt.

As at As at

31 December 30 June

2002 2002

Net debt HK$m HK3m

Consolidated net debt 30,683 30,135

- New World infrastructure Limited 8,047 8,641

— New World China Land Limited 4,879 4017

— New World Telecom and New World Mobility 864 70

— New World Services 1,336 112

Net debt excluding major subsidiaries 15,557 17,295
Gross debt

Consolidated gross debt 38,148 37,229

- New World Infrastructure Limited 10,181 10,436

~ New World China Land Limited 6,565 5,468

- New World Telecom and New World Mobility 950 137

- New World Services 3,666 2,751

Gross debt excluding major subsidiaries 16,786 18,437
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (con't)
Source of Borrowings
As at 31 December 2002, less than one-third of the total outstanding lcans were secured by the Group’s assets.

Interest Rate and Maturity Profile

As at 31 December 2002, HK$18,986.2 million debt will be due within the next twelve months. Our cash on hand
as of 31 December 2002 was HK$7,463.9 milion and a syndicated loan of HK$7,000.0 million was raised in
December 2002 for drawdown in January 2003.

This combination of cash on hand, together with the operating cash inflow from property sales, property rentals,
telecommunications, NWS Holdings Limited and our remaining undrawn banking facilities, should enable the
Group to satisfy its debt repayment commitments and working capital requirements.

Over 75% (77% in FY2002) of the Group’s total debt is on a floating rate basis, whilst fixed rate borrowings are
mainly related to the RMB loan facilities and convertible bonds. With a larger portion of floating rate debt, our

interest outlay is set to drop further in line with falling interest rates.

Interest Coverage
The interest cover was 1.4 times as at 31 December 2002 as compared to 1.8 times as at 30 June 2002.

Employees
The Group had approximately 25,500 employees as at 31 December 2002, compared to over 26,100 as at 30
June 2002, Total staff cost for the 6 months under review was HK$1,754.8 million.

Qutlook

Qur progress during the rest of this fiscal year will continue to be impacted by the sluggish economy. The key
factors which may weigh on our future profitabllity are the continued downward pressure on Hong Kong office
rentals due to a supply-demand imbalance, potentially rising average oil prices, a further contraction in construction

projects and weak consumer demand for property in Hong Kong.

However, we are confident that NWD will be able to capitalise on its diverse businesses to weather the current
difficult markets. We believe that there are 4 key areas of growth for NWD over the near-term and beyond.

First, the economic growth in Mainland China and the increased development of its cities will have a significant
positive impact on our business exposure in Mainland China. In 2002, China's economy grew at an enviable pace
when compared to other parts of the world. This robust economic growth has fueled demand for residential
housing and prime location office space. Together with liberalised mortgage policies and the emergence of a
secondary market, favourable conditions for a rising property market are emerging. Mainland China’s growth has
also fueled rising disposable incomes, increasing car ownership and increasing trade activities, factors that will
have a direct benefit on our traditional infrastructure, ports and service businesses as well as on our strategic

businesses such as New World Department Stores.
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Outlook (con't)

With our subsidiaries NWCL, NWS Holdings, NWDS and NWCEP, we have already laid the groundwork and are
uniquely positioned to capture these growth opportunities. For example, in the second half of FY2003, 7 development
projects and 2 investment properties are scheduled for completion with a total GFA of 655,000 sg m under
NWCL.

Development projects under NWCL to be completed in the second half of FY2003

NWCL's

Total GFA attributable

Projects Usage {sq m) interest

Nanjing New World Centre R 73,940 92%

Jinan Sunshine Garden Phase | R 39,329 85%

Wuhan Changaing Garden Phase IV R 168,155 60%

Guangzhou Covent Garden Phase |I R 11,600 60%

Guangzhou Park Paradise Phase IIB R 55,235 60%

Guangzhou Xintang New World Garden Phase i R 13,674 80%

Zhaoging New World Garden Phase | R 36.500 40%
Total 398,433
Investment properties under NWCL to be completed in the second half of FY2003

NWCL’s

Total GFA attributable

Projects Usage (sgm) interest

Nanjing New World Centre C, 0O, Oth 118,934 92.0%

Shanghai Hong Kong New World Tower C, 0, Oth 137,746 44.1%

Total 256,680

Given our competitive advantages, coupled with our strategy to differentiate our corporate brands by maintaining
their reputation for providing best-in-class products and service quality, the future prospects of the Group remain
very promising in the Mainland.

The second growth area for the Group is telecommunications. We expect NWM and NWT to gradually increase
their contribution to the Group going forward now that the businesses have progressed beyond the investment/
start up phase. Both companies are launching new and innovative preducts and are significantly growing their

subscriber bases.
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Outlook (con't)
The third key area will be our convention and exhibition, hotel and restaurant businesses. Developments such as
the relaxation of visa restrictions will result in a rising number of visitors from Mainland China, resulting in a positive

impact on these businesses.

The fourth key area of growth is in Hong Kong. With our healthy pipeline of 40 development projects and an
extensive land bank, we are well-positioned to benefit from any pick up in property sales. Of course, a pick up in
the property market will also benefit our construction and engineering as well as services businesses. One of our
major development projects is the 1 million sq ft Tsim Sha Tsui Hanoi Road Redevelopment, which has commenced
the foundation work and is expected to be completed by late 2005. This project tentatively comprises a shopping
mall, hotel and service apartments.

In 2003, the Group is expected to have 9 development projects with over 8,000 units for sale of which the Group’s
interest in these projects ranges from 16% to 100%. In terms of estimated saleable area, over 70% of the projects

are located in urban areas.

Property development projects to be sold in 2003

Total GFA NWD’s
Projects Location (sgft) No. of units interest (%)
11 MacDonnell Road Mid-level 62,780 28 33.3
Seaview Crescent — Block 5 Tung Chung 237,535 387 16.4
La Padera # Yuen Long 303,350 425 56.0
Sky Tower Kowloon City 1,500,368 2,208 20.0
Parc Palais Homantin 900,000 ~ 700 30.0
2 Park Road Mid-levels 150,280 148 100.0
West End Terrace & Bonham Road Mid-levels 123,244 ~ 128 70.0
Kennedy Town Redevelopment Western district 676,687 * 1,174 100.0
Tseung Kwan O Area 55b Tseung Kwan O 914,079 1,472 45.0
Total 4,868,323 6,670

Note: * — Estimated; # - Sereno Verde Phase [Il & IV

in order to promote Hong Kong tourism, the Government has a series of plans to re-develop the Tsim Sha Tsui
waterfront into an international arts and cultural attraction. Under the current plan, New World Centre will become
the focal point of Tsim Sha Tsui with easy access by KCR, MTR and bus. One of the initiatives is the development
of the "Avenue of Stars”, a concept similar to the "Walk of Fame” in Hollywood in Los Angeles, to honour contribution
made by actors and others in film production over the years in promoting Hong Kong's film industry. With the
completion of this “Avenue of Stars” along the New World Centre waterfront and the construction of KCR East
Tsim Sha Tsui Station in 2004, New World Centre will become the “heart” of Tsim Sha Tsui.
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Outlook (con’t)

As a publicly listed company, we are committed to consistent and open discussion with investors, fund managers,
and other members of the financial and investment community, as well as our employees and members of our
greater community. We are also committed to corporate social responsibility and as a Group are engaged in a
number of charitable initiatives in Hong Kong. Over the past 6 months the group has made significant strides
towards enhancing our transparency particularly during our reorganisation process. In an effort to promote better
understanding of our group recrganisation, we have consistently reached out to investors, analysts and the media
through activities such as briefings, roundtables and site visits. We believe that maintaining this focus will be
essential in order to differentiate ourselves in this ever-changing and difficult market environment. Guided by these
principles, we are dedicated to sharing with all parties concerned our progress and achievements, our challenges
and strategies, and, most impoertant of all, our vision and mission.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares
As at 31 December 2002, interests of the Directors and their associates in the equity securities of the Company
and its subsidiary companies which have been recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section

29 of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance were as follows:

Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests™ Interests

New World Development Company Limited

(Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each)
Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung - - - -
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry - - - -
The Honourable Lee Quo-Wei - - 3,583,464 253,321@
Ld. Sandberg, Michael - - - -
Dr. Ho Tim ‘ 1,805,813 - - -
Dr. Sin Wai-Kin, David 3,363,363 33,642 - -
Mr. Cheng Yue-Pui - - - -
Mr. Liang Chong-Hou, David - - - -
Mr. Yeung IPing-Leung, Howard - - - -
Mr. Cha Mou-Sing, Payson - - - -
Mr. Cheng Kar-Shing, Peter - - - -
Mr. Leung:Chi-Kin, Stewart 23,253 - - -
Mr, Chan Kam-Ling 96,669 - - -
Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 20,818 - - -
Mr, Cha Mou-Zing, Victor (alternate director

to Mr Cha Mou-8ing, Payson) - - - -

Extensive Trading Company Limited
{(Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each)
Mr. Cheng Kar-Shing, Peter - 380,000 -
Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 160,000 - - -
Mr. Chan Kam-Ling - - 80,000 -
Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 80,000 - - -

Hip Hing Construction Company Limited
{Non-voting deferred shares of HK$100.00 each)
Dr. Sin Wai-Kin, David 42,000 - - -
Mr. Chan IKam-Ling 15,000 - - -

HH Holdings Corporation
(Ordinary share of HK$1.00 each)
Dr. Sin Wai-Kin, David 42,000 - - -
Mr. Chan Kam-Ling 15,000 - - -

International Property Management Limited
{Non-voting deferred shares of HK$10.00 each)
Dr. Sin Wai-Kin, David 5,400 - - -
Mr. Chan Kam-Ling 1,350 - - -
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Directors’ Interests in Shares (con't)

Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests™ Interests

Master Services Limited

(Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each)

Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 16,335 - - -

Mr. Chan Kam-Ling 16,335 - - -

Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 16,335 - - -
Matsuden Company Limited

(Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each)

Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 44,000 - - -

Mr. Chan Kam-Ling - - 44,000 -

Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 44,000 - - -
New World China Land Limited

(Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each)

Mr. Chan Kam Ling 100,000 - - -

Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 126 - - -
New World Infrastructure Limited

{Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each)

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry - 1,000,000 - -

Dr. Ho Tim 148 - - -

Dr. Sin Wai-Kin, David 5,594 53 - -

Mr. Liang Chong-Hou, David 262 - - -

Mr. Chan Kam-Ling 6,800 - - -
New Waorld Services Limited

(Crdinary shares of HK$0.10 each)

Dr. Sin Wai-Kin, David - - 29,350,490 -

Mr. Cheng Kar-Shing, Peter - - 3,382,788 -

Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 4,214,347 - 250,745 -

Mr. Chan Kam-Ling - - 10,602,565 -

Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 2,662,410 - - -
Progreso Investment Limited

{Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each)

Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart - - 119,000 -

Tai Yieh Construction & Engineering Company Limited
{Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1,000.00 each)
Dr. Sin Wai-Kin, David 700 - - _
Mr. Chan Kam-Ling 250 - - -
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Directors’ Interests in Shares (con't)

Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests® Interests
Urban Properity Management Limited
(Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each)
Mr. Cheng Kar-Shing, Peter - - 750 -
Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 750 _ ~ - -
Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 750 - - -
YE Holdings Corporation
(Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each)
Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart 37,500 - - -
Notes:

i These shares were beneficially owned by a company in which the relevant director is deemed to be entitled under the
Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance to exercise or control the exercise of one third or more of the voting power
at its general meeting.

@ Interests held by a charitable foundation of which The Honourable Lee Quo-Wei and his spouse are members of its

board of trustees.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Under the respective share option schemes of New World China Land Limited ("NWCL"), New World Infrastructure
Limited (“NWI"} and NWS Holdings Limited ("NWS") (formerly known as Pacific Ports Company Limited), options
may be granted respectively to certain directors and employees of NWCL, NW! or NWS to subscribe for shares,
Certain directors of the Company have persaonal interest in share ogptions to subscribe for shares iIn NWCL or NWI

respectively.

2000 Share Option Scheme of NWCL

Share options to directors

Number of share options
Exercised Exercise price
Exercisable Balance at during Balance at per share
Name of director Date of grant period 1 July 2002 the period 31 December 2002 HKS
Or. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry 7 February 2001 8 March 2001 to
7 March 2006 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 1956
Mr. Cheng Kar-Shing, Pefer 9 February 2001 10 March 2001 to
9 March 2006 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 1955
M. Leling Chi-Kin, Stewart 7 February 2001 8 March 2001 to
7 March 2006 500,000 - 500,000 1.956
W, Chan Kam-Ling 9 February 2001 10 March 2002 o ‘
8 March 20062 400,000 - 400,000 1955
Mr. Chow Kwai-Cheung 9 February 2001 10 March 2001 to

9 March 2006 500,000 - 5000004 1.995
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures (con't)

Notes:

PE AT AN L

‘” The share options are exercisable during a period of five years commencing from the expiry of one month after the dates
of grant when the offers of share options were accepted, provided that the maximum number of share options that can
be exercised during a year is 20.0% of the total number of the share options granted together with any unexercised share
options carried forward from the previous years, unless as specified in note (2).

@ The share options were exercisable during the remaining exercisable period of four years, provided that the maximum
number of share options that can be exercised during a year is 256% of the outstanding balance of the share options held
on the respective commencement date of the exercisable period.

@ The cash consideration paid by each director for each grant of the share option is HK$10.

The 2000 Share Option Scheme of NWCL was terminated by NWCL at its annual general meeting held on 26
November 2002 (“2002 AGM”). Any share options which were granted under the 2000 Share Option Scheme of
NWCL prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the
2000 Share Option Scheme of NWCL. At the 2002 AGM of NWCL, a new share option scheme was adopted in
compliance with the new requirements of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. No

share option had been granted to any of the directors or employees of NWCL under the new share option scheme

during the period ended 31 December 2002.

1997 Share Option Scheme of NWI

Share options to directors

Number of share options _
Exercised Exercise price
Balance at during Balance at per share
Name of director Date of grant 1 July 2002 the period 31 December 2002 HK$
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry 2 December 1998 600,000 - 600,000 1020
2 December 1988 2,400,000 - 2,400,000@ 12.00
Mr. Cheng Kar-Shing, Peter # 1 Decernber 1998 120,000 - 120,000 10.20
1 December 1998 480,000 - 480,000@ 12.00
Mr. Leung Chi-Kin, Stewart # 8 December 1998 120,000 - 120,0000 10.20
8 December 1998 480,000 - 480,0002 12.00
Mr. Chan Kam-Ling # 9 December 1998 200,000 - 200,000 10.20
9 Becember 1998 800,000 - 800,000@ 1200

# resigned as director of NWI with effect from 17 January 2003.

Notes:

o Exercisable from 1 July 1999 to 1 June 2004.

@ Divided into.3 tranches exercisable from 1 July 2000, 2001 and 2002 respectively to 1 June 2004,
@ The cash consideration paid by each director for each grant of the share options is HK$10.

“ No option had been exercised by the directors of NWI under the Share Option Scheme for the period ended 31 December

2002.

=R
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures (con't)

A new share option scheme (the “2001 Share Option Scheme”) was approved by the board of directors of Nwi on
10 October 2001 and adopted by the shareholders of NWI at the annual general meeting held on 6 December
2001. Under the 2001 Share Option Scheme, the directors of NWI may, at their discretion, grant options to
directors and employees of NWI, to subscribe for shares in NWI. No share option had been granted to any of the
directors and employees of NWI under the 2001 Share Option Scheme since it was adopted.

Share Option Scheme of NWS

A share option scheme was adopted by NWS on 6 December 2001 and was amended by the approval of the
shareholders at the special general meeting (*SGM”) of NWS held on 12 March 2003 (“the NWS 2001 Share
Option Scheme”). The NWS 2001 Share Option Scheme which will be valid and effective for a period of ten years
from the date of adoption. The total number of shares of NWS which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the NWS 2001 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes must not
in aggregate exceed 10.0% of the ordinary share capital of NWS in issue as at the date of SGM. No share option
had been granted under such scheme since its adoption.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period was the Company or any of its subsidiary companies a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or chief executive or any of their spouse or
children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholder

As at 31 Decemnber 2002, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, together with its subsidiary companies, had interests
in 831,206,530 shares in the Company.

Save for the above, no other shareholder is recorded in the register kept pursuant to Section 16(1) of the Securities
(Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance as having an interest in 10% or more of the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2002.
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YR EHARLECE
New World Development Company lelted
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (Stock code: 17) °

| Results Announcement KOO0 !

RESULTS

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 30 June 2004

2003
HitSm
{as
restated)

Turnover - : 21,056.3

Cost of sales : 151 (16,912.8)
Gross profit Cha ] 5 4,1435
Other revenues 3 y 356
Other (charge)/income 3 i ¥ (4,732.6)
Selling and marketing expenses AR (431.4)
Administrative expenses E: f {1,085.4)
Other operating expenses {1,895,5)
Operating loss before financing costs and income -2 ! 36(2'97 (3,964.8)
Financing costs g ng (1,824.1)
Financing income : ) 337.9
Operating loss 4 2 D - (5.451.0)
Share of results of N ‘ .

Associated companies 93.7

Jointly controiled entities A 212.7
Loss befors taxation 439,008 (5,144.6)
Taxation 5 +980) {317.4)
Loss after taxation '"W‘ {5,462.0)
Minarity interests 2 ! 754.3
Loss attributable to shareholders NeL R (97 (4,707.7)
Dividends ;

interim paid HK$0.02 per share (2003: HK$0.06}
Final of HK$0.04 per share (2003: nil)

Loss per share 6.
- Basic
Diluted '

HK$(1.96)
N/A

Oividends per shate HIKS0.06

Notes:

1. Basis of prepsration ef financisl statements

Oeferred raxation
In order 1o comply with Statement of Standard Accounting Pra.

assuted beyond reasonable doub,

As a result of the adoption of this policy, the Group's opening reserves at 1 July 2002 and 2003 have been reduced by
HK$2B1,1 million and HK$179.0 million, respectively, This change has resulted (6 an incraase in net daferred tax
lisbillties of KKS94.1 millian A% et 30 June 2003. The loss for cthe year ended 30 June 2003 has been ceduted by

HK$103.8 million.

The hew sccounting policy hay been sdupted retrospectively and certain comparsiive figures have been adjusted

accordingly.
2. Segmant Information

s Buiness segments

Prepurty
Tavestment

wod .
daveloprent  Semvice munigations Othars
HRSm HHym Hesen HKSm sK3m

ice 11 {revised) *Income tases” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (previousty named the Honp Kong Society of Accountants), the Group
adopted a new accounting polley for deferred tax with effect from 1 Juty 2003. Apart from certain limited exceptions,
atl deferred tax abilities, and afl defesred tax 255813 10 the extent that It is probable that future taxable profils will be
avallable against which the 2sset con be utilised, are recognised. The amount of deferred tax recogniced is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying smount of the assets and liablilties, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacied st the balance sheet date. In prior years, delerred 1ax liabillties were provided
using the liability method in respect of the taxation effect arising from all materlal tiniing differences between the
sccaunting and tax treatment of lacome and exprnditure, which were expecied with teasonable prabsbility 1o
crystalfise In the foreseeable future. Future deferred tax benefits were not recognised unless their realisation was

Telecom- 5 Eiimin. Comsoli-

Exremat sales 65950 w3 sy 88 12543 15887 - 28,850
- 2 15818 = 166 - 88 e -

Tossl twnave: 87738 123902 3749 16404 3545 0133 (.80 286530

Segment resuts vy Y wy BN 1005 1080 . ANETTY

" Other tchaegelt X
income 48540 {1980 wss s} WO 51260 by
Unilocted comorite exptisn s
Operating loss before financing
eosth and income 9780

Yoor 2003 (as restated]

3.

P

b Geographical segments.

Operating prafit
{1oss) betare
fiasncing costs

Turnover and income
HKSm
Yonr 2004" . .
Hong Kong and Southeast Asis 18,2531 & 15712
Maintand China 7.3999 . 1,647.4)
North America -~ i2,701.8)
25,6530 12,978.0)
Year 2003 (21 restatad) .
Hong Kong and Southesst Asia 15,8906 (19520
Mainland China 51857 {1.763.3)
North America -~ (245.5)
. 21,056.2 13,964.8)

Other (chargelincome

Amortisation of

Cost of investments in jointly controlied entities 10.4)
Develapmeat costs —
Goodwlll (5.4}
Dilution loss on reorganlsation of subsidiaries {196.4)
Reoiganisation expenses (78,1}
Impairment loss on
Fixed assets (388.8)
Goodwill 210
Intangible assets -
Provision for Investments In
A joint property developmen project - 36.8)
Associated companies {138.2)
- Jointly contralled entities 42.2)
Usted shares [39.0)
Unlisted shates. {82.4)
Provisian for
. Accounts recelvable (355
Advances to associated companies (62.5)
Advances to Jointly contsolled entlties (480.8)
Loans to investes companies -
. Other assets ' (vadd)
Other investments ! e {305.3)
Payments. on account (1118
Pravision for diminution in value of
properties held for sal (1,!52.!)
Lots on dilution of Interests In wbslamm 0.3)
Premiym on rademption ! conv n »
Write back of/(provision fur) mllulrlnr\ deﬂdl of 8 hol!l propesty (\75 3
Net profit/{loss) on dispesal of .
Associated companles . a1
Jointly controlled entities (24.9}
Listed shares -
Other investments 74

Subsidlaries
Profil on partls) gisposal of subsidiaries
Surplus on liquidation of & subsidiary
Wilte down of stocks to net reslisable value
Write back of impalrment [oss on
Fixad assets
A Jointly controfled entity
write back of provision for
Diminution In valve of propenies held for sale
Unlisted shares

14,732.6}

Oparating loss

Operating loss of the Group is srrived at sfter charging the following:

31328
12165

Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation and amortisation

Taxation

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% {2003:17.5%) on the estimbted sssessable profits for the
yesr. Tox on overseas profits has been calcutated on the estimated unble proflts for the year at the rate of taxation
prevalling in the countries In which the Group operates.

Company and subsidiaries
Hang Kong profits tax
Overseas taxation
Undetsover) provisions in prior years
Deferred taxation relating to the origination and reverssl of temporary
differences
Deferred taxation resulting from an increase in tax ate

Assotiated companies
Hong Kong profits tex
QOverseas taxation

17433 12093 347 L 2413 13389 - 20563 Oeferred taxation
vaeregment .
aes Wms  ums ~ 20 - 38 nsan - .
Toul wrnower 19583 11,1922 (LT3 27194 26739 11639 {1.5418) 21,0583 Jointly controlled entities ’
Hong Kong profits tax
Segment msuits 470 s 1363 s “©2 (a4 L1 Ovearseas Laxstion
Osher {charpeld . i
ncome 1Ay - ni s BT TYY wms Deferced taxstion
Unafiocated torporale expeases {480.0)
Opernting ot belore francing E oS r——
casts and ioms (13646 xation charg:

[y
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6. Loss per lhl" !
The calculation of bulc |ou pet lhul is bnod on’ lM lou srtibutable to smnﬁolden of HKS976.2 milfion (2003:
restaced loss of HK$4,707.7 milllon) and the weighted average aumber of 1,771.8 mmlnn (2003: 2,180.6 miilion) shares
* in issue duling tha year,

No dliution effact was resulted on the toss per share for the current yur and the pnvum yeas afier taking into account
the potential dilutive effect of the convertible bonds which expired on 9 June 2004.

7. Comparative Agures
Comparative figures for tha segment Information hlvc been rodlumed to- canform with the current years
presentation,

QUALIFIED AUDITORS’ REPORT
The Dlrenors would (ke to draw your attentlon that the report of the joint auditors,

PricewaterhouseCoopers and H.C. Watt & Company Limited, on the annual accounts of the Group-

for the year ended 30 June 2004 has been qualified. The relevant parts of the auditors’ report that
deatt with the qualification as well as the refevant notes to the accounts to which the auditors’ report
refers to are quoted as follows:

AUDITORS’ REPORT

Basis of opinfon

We conducted our audit in ac:ordan:e with Smements af Audltlng Standards Issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, ex:epl that tha scope of our work was limited as
explained below.’

An audit Includes examination, on a test basls, of evidence relevant 1o’ the amounts and disclosures in
the accounts. It afso includes an assessment of the s and fudg made by the
directors in the preparation of tha accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

idered

We plannad our audit 5o as to obtain ali the and which we
necessary in order to provide us with sufficlent evidence to g\ve reasonable assurance as to whether
the accounts are frea from material misstatement. However, the evidence available to us was limited
as set out below.

Fundamental uncertainty and limitation of audit scope refating to pending litigations

As described in Note 34 to the accounts, New World TMY Limited (*RWTMT?), a 54744% owned listed

subsidiary, commenced litigations against Prediwave Corporation (“Prediwave’) and cerrain
compenles associated with Prediwave (collectively the “PrediWave Companies”) and Mr, Tony Qu,
the prasident and founder of the Prediwave Companies. NWTMT was seeking recovery of various
investments In and other payments made by the Group to the Prediwave Companles (the "NWTMT
Comptaint”). On. the other hand, Prediwave also commenced litigations against NWTMT (the
“Prediwave Compglaint”), under which PrediWave alleged that NWTMT had falled to make full
payments under certain purchase orders and an agreement of approximately US$59 million
(approximately HK$459 million). Prediwave claimed damages of not less than US$58 million
(approximately HK$452 million) and los; of profit of unspecified amount.

As more (ully described In Note 34 10 the accounts, In preparing the accounm the directors have
concluded that a full provislon amounting to HK$3,082 million against the Group’s investments in the
PrediWave Companies, loans 1o the PrediWave Companles and deposits paid to PrediWave
{collectively the "PrediWave Assets®), s most appropriate for the purpose of the accounts for the
year ended 30 June 2004, in addition, the directors have not made any provision far any
commitment/loss under the PrediWave Complaint In the accounts as they are of the view that the
Group has proper and valid to the P

As 2 result of the uncertainty of the timing and the cutcome of the litigations which would have a
consequential effect on the amount of assets recoverable, as well as the lack of updated meaningfu!
financiaf Informatfon on the PrediWave C the evidence (able to us for the

carrylng values of the Prediwave Ane(s, the propriety of the pravisions made agains! the PrediWave

Assets and any provision for any 55 under the Predi C int was limited, There
were no other practical satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt to assess the carrying
valuas of the Prediwave Assets, lhe propriety of the provislons made against the PrediWave Assets
and any for any floss under the Pr Vave C it Any 1o the
f.arrylng values of the PrediWave Assets or pI for any floss under the PrediWave
Complaint that might have been necessary should evidence become avallable to us would have a
consequential impact on the Group’s net assets at 30 june 2004 and the Group’s foss for the year
then ended.

Limitation of audit scope relating to ather investments

Included in other investments is an uniisted equity investment of approximately HX$377 milllon in-

Intellambda Systems tnc. (“Intellambda®) which was acquired by NWTMT durlng the year. Mr. Tony Qu
Is the Chief Executive Officer of Intellambda. As described in Note 18 to the accounts, sufficient
financial information on Intellambda was not available to the directors, Notwlthstandlng that, the
directors remain confident in the technolegy and of 1l and consider
that no provision for impairment in value of the Invesrment In intellambda is required. We were

unable 1o obtatn sufficient explanations and evidence relating to the future prospect of Intellambda. .

There were no.other practical satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt to assess the catrylng
value of the investment in Intellambda as at 30 June 2004, Any adjustment that might have been
necessary should evidence become available to us would have » conseqientlal impact on the Group's
hat assets at 30 June 2004 and the Group's loss for the year then ended.

in forming our opinlon we also 1] d the overall of information in
the azcounts, We belleve that our sudit provides a reasonable basls for our opinion.

Quslified opinion ‘arising from limitation of audit scope

Except for any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary had we bean able to cbtaln |

sufficient evidence concerning the matters referred to in the "Basis of opinion” paragraphs, in our
oplnion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30 June 2004 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Xong Companies Ordinance,

In respect alone of the limitation on our work relating to the matters described above, we have not
obtalned all the information and explanations that we considered necessary fer the purpose of our
audit. .

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS ~ : -
18, Other investments

{b) Also Inthuded in unlisted equlry sacuritles is an unlisted eqully investment of appreximately
HK$376.9 million In Systems Inc. which was acquired by NWTMT
during the year, Mr. Tony Qu Is the Chief Execullve Ofﬂ:er of intellambda . Intellambda’s
business objective is to develop optical transpart and switching platform and provide the
opticat networking solutions for carriers planning on building or upgrading their metro and
regional infrastructures, Based on the latest financial Information available to. NWTMT,
Intellambda was operating at a loss. The director nominated by NWTMT to intelftambda has
requested for further financial information from Intellambda for the purpose of assessing the
carrylng value of the Investment in Intellambda. However, intellambda Imposed certain
conditions before it.would make availablé further financial information to the director
nominated by NWTMT to intellambda. In view of the conditlons imposed, no further

34. Pending litigations

'
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infarmation was obtained from Inte"ambda Desgke the litigation agalnsl Mr. Tony Qu, the
directors of NWTMT remain ci in the heid by Ir bda and consider
that there is no reason to belleve why Mr. Tony Qu would not pursug, if not harder because of
the presence of NWTMT. as a shareholder keeping » close eye on the performance, the
business objective of intellambda and make it a successful operation, As a result, the directors
of the Company consider that no pravision for impairment in value of the investment in
intellambda is required.

() 'In May 2004, NWTMT, a 54. 4496 owned listed subsidiary, filed complaints to the Supertor
Court of the State of California for the County of Santa Clara in the United States of America
("US") (*NWTMT Complalnt®) agalnst the PrediWave Companies and Mr. Tony Qu, the
president and founder of the Prediwave Companies. Under the NWTMT Complaint, NWTMT
alleged that, In reliance of the representations glven by Mr Tony Qu and Prediwave, NWTMT
entered into various a9 with the P undes which the Group
invested in the PrediWave Companies and placed varlous purchase orders for goods and
services relating to the technology (the *Technology”} of video-on-demnand and other digltal

- broadcasting and related technofogy and- added value services. The Group had paid
epproximately HK3S billion to the Prediwave Companies for investments in and Joans to the
- Prediwave Companies, and purchases of goods and services from PrediWave. NWTMT
complained of various breaches, In relatlon to goods and services relating to the Technology,
by Mr. Tony Qu and the PrediWave Companies relating to the panies’ agreemants,
Accordingly, NWTMT claimed damages for an amount 1o be determined at trial together with
interest, rescission of all agreements, restitution of all monies obtained from the Group,
punitive and exemplary darnages, costs of legal proceedings and other declaratory refief and
equitable relief. The tatat monetary amount sought by NWTMT in the law sult exceeds
US$4$700.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$5,460.0 million).

The directors of NWTMT have been advised by their externa! legal counse! that the NWTMT
Complaint wili not be concluded in a short perlod of time and the cutcome of the NWTMT
Complaint Is uncertain.

Based on the unaudited management accounts of the PrediWave Compnnles as st 37
December 2003 which were obtained prior to the commencement of the NWTMT Complaint,
there was a balance of approximately US$344.0 million {equlvaient to approximately
HK$2, £83.0 mnllon) In their bank accounts.

In june 3004, with the objeciive of pi h iy of funds, pr. Jimmy U,
the director nominated by NWTMT to <enaln Prediwave Companies sought ta exercise the
co-signing rights in retatlon to withdrawals of funds in excess of USS0.5 miillon from the bank
accounts of certain Prediwave Companies by requasting a temporary restraining order from
the court. Howaever, such request was denled by the Superior Court of the State o! California
for the County of Santa Clara in the US.

in August 2004, the Superlor Court of the State of Californla !or the County of Santa Clara In
the US made an order in favour of Mr. Jimmy LI parmitting him to inspect all corporate books
2nd records of certain Pradiwave Companies. Mr, Jimmy LI Is assisted by an accounting firm in
the US ta inspect-the books and racerds but no meaningful financial Information has been
extracted as of the date of approval of the accounts,

As the directors of NWTMT were unable to freeze the bank accounts ar enforce the co-signing
* rights, the directors of NWTMT consider that they cannot effectively monitor the utilization of
funds by the Prediwave Cornpanies. Notwithstanding that the bank balance of the PradiWave
Companies were approximately US$344.0 million as at 31 December 2003 based on their
unaudited management accounts, the directors of NWTMT expect that the utllization of funds
far legal costs and other causes beyond their control wilt be significant throughout the period
up to the date when the NWTMT Complaint is concluded. In addition, in the absence of the
ty of i t and financlal information on tha Prediwave Companies
#nd given the uncertainty ol the tlmlng and the outcome of the litigation which would have a
consequential effect on the amount of assets ble, the di of the Company have
concluded that a full provision of HK$3,082,0 million made agalnn the Group s Inveslmenls in
the Prediwave Companles, loans 1o the P and aid to
PrediWave Is most appropriate for the puspose of the accounu tor rbe year ended 30 June
2004.

(b) In May 2004, Prediwave filed complaints to the Superior Court of the State of California for

Ihe Coumy of Los Ange!es tn the-US against NWTMT (the "PrediWave Complaint®). Under the

P aliaged that NWTMT had failed to make full payments under
three purchase ordeu and one agreement for goods and services delivered or licenses
granted by Prediwave 1o the Group refating to the Technology with an outstanding amount
of approximately US$58.9 miilian (equivalent to approximately HK$459.0 million). Prediwave
claimed damages against NWTMT in an amount to be proved at triai, but not fass than 3
US558.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$452,0 million) together with interast and K
costs of legal proceedings, and a declaration that NWTMT should pay PrediWave the profits
PredWave would have received had NWTMT performed its obligations under various '
purchase order and agreements and that Prediwave should be entitled 10 retaln the deposits
made by NWTMT thereunder.

The directors are of the view that the Group ha: praper and valld defances to the Predlwave'
Camplaint, and accordingly, no pi for has been d for in the
accounts, )

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have resolved ta recommend a fina! dividend In scrip form equivatent 1o HXS0.04 per share with 8 cash option
to shareholders registered on 7 December 2004. Together with the Interm Gividend of HK$0.02 per share paid in May 2004,
the total distribution for 2004 would thus be HK$C.06 per share (2003: HK$0.06 per share),

Subject to the Listing Committes of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange?) granting listing of
2nd permission to deal in the new shares, each sharehcider will be atiotied fully pald shares having an aggregate market
value equal to the totsl amount which such shareholder could #lect 1o receive In cash and that they be given the option ta
elect (o raceive payment in Cash of HKSD.04 per share Instead of the allotment of shares. full detalls of the scrip dividend
will be set ouLin a letter 10 be sent 1o shareholdars together with 3 form of etection for cash on of about 7 December 2004,

BOOK CLOSE DATES .
Book close dates (both days inclusive) H 1 December 2004 to 7 December 2004

Latest time to lodge transfer with Registrar : 30 November 2004, Tuesday«:00 p.m. _ B
Address of Registrar : Tengis Limited, Ground Fioor, Bank of East

Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester
Road, Wanchal, Heng Kong

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES . o

Neither the Company nor any of Its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed zny of the
Company’s shares during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except for pending litigations as referred to in note 34 of the accounts quoted zbove, the Group's
ather contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2004 amounted to HK$9,311.1 million.

E—
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BUSINESS REVIEW

SEGMENT ANALYSIS (INCLUDING ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

FY2004

FY2003
{As restated)..
HKS$ million '

HKS million
Segment contribution

Property sales (770.6)
Rental 5764
Service 5847

infrastructure
Telecommunications
Department stores
Others

Segment results

1,352.3
2.8

40.2
(450.6)

PROPERTY

Hong Kong Property Development .

The proparty market in Hong Kong rebounced in the fourth guarter of 2003. Since then, both volume
and pricing recorded sclid growth. The Group sold 1,136,977 sq. ft. In Hong Kong comparing to
660,341 sq, ft. in FY2003. In FY2004, the Group completed the development of No. 2 Park Road and
Bon-Point at Mid-Levels ol Hong Kong Istand; Parc Palais, Sky Tower and K|ngs'ord Terrace in
Kowloon. .

The Group now has a landbank of §.54 million sq. ft which Is enough for meeting Its development
needs for three to four years. Moreover, the Group has & total 20 million sg. ft. of agricultural land
reserve,

Attribut:

- Hong Kong Island
Kowloon- .
NT excluding those agricultural and pending for !and conversion

Total

2,835,219
5,541,775

Attributable

, L . Total fand arca land arca
= ‘Agricultural landbank by location (sq. ft.} {sq. ft.}
Yuen Long © 14,420,000 | 12,937,100
Shatin/Tai Po 3,414,000 2,528,000
Fanling 2,310,000 2,310,000
Tuen Mun 120,000 - 170000
Sai Kung | 905,000 1,668,000
Total 22,169,000 19,563,100

The Group is actively negotiating with govefnment on agricultural land conversion. However, during
FY2004, only one site of GFA 260,000 sq. ft. was conciuded in June 2004. Several leading developers
voiced out difficulties in closing agricuitural land premium r with the g due to
differences in prl:e expectations.

Strong compemlon at the auctions for 2 major sites in Homantin and San Po Kong on 12 October
2004 further confirmed the upturn of the Hong Kong property market. In FY2005, on an attributable
basis, the Group has 1,8 million sq. ft, property, including inventary and projects to be launched for
sale. Projects to be launched in the coming months include Kennedy Town Redevelopment, Black’s
Link, Tseung Kwan O Area 55b, Lau Fau Shan and Fu Tei projects. .

¥2005 Projects

Inventory completed before FY2005
Caldecott Hill (S@m#wW )

33 & 35 Island Road (% MM 33R st}
Kennedy Town Redevelopment (Rt
6-10.Black's Link (.5 s100)

Tseung Kwan O Area 55b (S R ssoW R E)
Lot No. 3569 in DD129, Lau Fau Shan (R LAE
3 Tuen Kwai Road, Fu Tei (5% 158)

332,668
31,220
-27,438
8

196,744

(Stock code: 17)

Pagg 3

Hotel in Mainland China Number of rooms

New World Courtyard Hotel, Beljing (2 200 &t R R4 %) . 292
Jing Guang New World Hotel, Beljing (£ XXSKE AKX 444
Mayfair Hote! Shanghal (t WERB X AT E) 860
New World Hotel, Shenyang (W & 00 &) 261
New World Courtyard Hotel, Shunde (Mm% & RN 0 E) 376
New World Courtyard Hotel, Wuxi (MAKEANEEE) 243 .
Grand New World Hotel, Xian (& % & €39 & B X B %) ’ 491
Total 2,968

Maintand China Property -

New World China Land Limited ("NWCL"), the Group's 70%-owned Mainland China property arm, has
currently 2 property portfolio of 36 major development property projects with 2 total GFA of 16
million sq. m., across 17 citles,

For the year under review, NWCL has d 15 property devel 1t projects in 10 cltles with a
totai GFA of 997,283 5q. m,, an increase of 39% year-on-year. Area sold surged 62% to 905,772 sq. m.
in FY2004.

Development property projects completed during FY2004

Tatal GFA
Frojects (sq. m.}

Beijing Xin Kang Garden Phase ()} (Z X W MRE= M) R 77,420
Beijing Xin Yu Garden Block 3 & 4 (UM KM3 + 4N E) C 70,526
Chateau Regalia Beljing' (X XE & E W) R 121,505
Tianjin. New World Garden Phase | (R SHARE —R) < 54,226
Tianjin New World Garden Phase Il (R Wt AxE =KD C 7731
Shenyang New World Garden Phase IC WDH&B&I-HC) R 98,023
Dalian Manhattan Tower il (XM @ ¥ X /) o] 55,005
Wuhan Menghu Garden' Phase 1A (RII!IU mA) R 12,098
Jinan Sunshine Garden Phase'| (MR XRE—X) [ 40,597
Nanjing New World Centre (RISt & R 0) R 70,363
‘Guangzhou Covent Garden Phase || (RMA%HE=X) R 28,918
Guangzhou Centra! Park-vlew Phase |
(R 4100 12 6 21 A — XD R 62,704
Guangzhou New World Orlemal Garden Phase |
[T % 20 X By ] R 117,745 100%
Guangzhou Xintang New World Garden Phase
(AR T AT = KD R 49,913 60%
Hulyang Patm Island Resort Phase IV (X8 %l B Resort® 1) R 40,372 34%
Shunde New World Convéntlon & Exhibltion Cenne Phase il
DA re M R = ) L 20,527 5%
Total 997,283
R 1 Residential
< Commercial
O @ Office

Shanghal Hong Kong New World Tower was completed ln October 2003 with satisfactory occupancy.
The Group's investment portfolic now Increased to 1.2 million sq. m. comprising retail, office, hotels,
service apartments and caspark at prime locations of high growth cities. The Central Government
announced austerity measures on the control of financial credit and land supply which are considered
for the long-term healthy growth of the real estate Industry. The gist of the credit tightening and land
policy Is to reduce irregularities and improve transparency.

Development property projects to be complated in FY2005

Projects m.}

Tota! 1,770,429

Hong Kong Property Investment

Increase of individual travellers from Mainland China and overseas spur the retall traffic. Located at
the Tsimshatsul Promenade and next to New World Centre, the “Avenue -of Stars®, a major new
attraction donated by the Group to honour Hong Keng's film professionals, made a big draw for
tourists and locals alike after its completion. The monthly visitor flow for the Avenue of Stars was over
1 million after its launch in April 2004, Pedestrian traffic is expected to be further enhanced with the
completion of the KCR East Tsimshatsui Station and its assoclated road works outside New World
Centre by the end of October 2004, Higher traffic may transiate into positive rental revision at New
Wworld Centre.

Hong Kong office rental market bottomed at end of 2003 with both e"e:tlve rent and occupancy

fieming up.

Hotels :
. Hong Kong hotets have lmproved slgniﬂcamly in both occupancy and average room’ rate The Group's
hotel i g d thelr p to the pre-SARS level,

China-Hotel in Guangzhou was reverted to G Municipal g
contract In June 2004, In FY2004, the 860-room Mayfair Hote! Shangha| was completed to, enhance
our Mainland China hotel portfolio te 7 hotels providing 2,968 guest rooms.

after the explry of the

Beljing Xin Kang Garden Phase i (£ X% ERE = M) R 7,000
Belfing New World Garden Phase (| (XN nRA=R) R 60,984
Beijing Xin Cheng Commercial Building (L RER XX W) o 36,964
Beifing Xin Yang Commercial Building . (it 3 %% R X5 1 1) [« 2,313
Wwuhan Menghu Garden Phase 1B (R &3 2% 85— Ki8) R 13,223
Wuhan Xin Hua Garden Phase Il (RAN W RE=R) R 39,073
Jinan Sunshine Garden Phese Il (AmMRIXEE=M) R 13,943
Nanjing New World Cantre (WEW & e &) R C 113,709
Guangzhou Covent Garden Phase (| (3 M % 20 = 1) R 67,896
Guangzhou Central Park-view Phase IB
(Iﬂil!ﬁﬁ#lﬂ—ms) R 73,964 91%
Park Phase il (MWK Y AR =B} R . 74,728 60%
Guangxhou Park: Paradise Phase Il (RHMMAKLARR=R) R 8,788 60%
hou Xintang New World Garden Phase |1,

(0% A4 95 50 0 8 RIS TR X9) R 37,000 60%
Hutyang Palm Island Resort Phase V (l!&llaumim R 32,000 34%
Huizhou Changhuyusn Phase il (KM &M= M) R 60,062 50%
Shenzhen New World Yt Shan Garden Phase Il .

(40 2 4201 7500 = K} R 36,088 $0%
Zhuhal New World Riviera Garden Phase Il

(e nOREm=)2 R 29,469 100%
Total 707,208

Investment properties.to be completed in FY2005
otal GFA

ibutable
interest
Wuhan Int'l Trade & Commerce Centre Phase tl
[§-3.3 1 &5 &3]
Guangzhou Central Park-view Phase 18
(5 40 50 2% 92 K 1 — 1 B)

Total

91%

R.C. O

39,782
84,622
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(he Cgongqrg (x m) operations had a full-year contribution. Durins
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New World Development Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (Slock :ode. 17)

SERVICE

Hong Kong enjoyed a fast-paced recovery after SARS With strong support from the Central
Government —- seen in measures such as the endorsement of CEPA and the (ifting of trave!
restrictions on Mainfanders wishing to visit Hong Kang — the majority of service operations have
benefited from the ensuing economic revival. The overall performance of Service operations for
FY2004 was satisfactory, .

HKCEC achieved an encouraging result due to the quick recovery in tourism, retail, and consumer
related businesses, as well as from the spill-over effect of the post-SARS business reschedullng of
many exhibitions and conventions. The occupancy of the HKCEC for the year was comparable to
those of previous years when mega functions such as ITU — Talecom Asia were held,

Property management produced a satisfactory result. As at 30 June 2004, Urban Property
Management managed a total of 1.8 million sq. m. of commercial/Industriat areas, 180,000
residential flats, and 33,000 car park spaces. Kiv Lok achieved sound resuits, mainly attributable to
the improved a:tlvltles in the Mainland China agency and property management businesses.

Construction operations faced tough market environment resulting from the slugglsh property
construction market.

Sky Connection Limited, which has exclusive right to retall duty free liquor and tobacco in Hong Kong
International Airport and ferry terminals, delivered satisfactory results.

The Group's transport operations have yet to regain passenger patronage back to the pre-SARS level.
Moreover the surging fuel costs coupled with keen competition from other mode of transport have
put pressure on the profitability. The Group's investment in Kunming (&%) bus service which
commenced business in early 2004, made an Immedlate profit contribution,

Page 4

Announcement 2008/ 2004

Hong Kong property had a sharp rebounce in the fourth gquarter of 2003. Since then, the volume znd
pricing of Hong Kong property both grew firmly. Provisions of HK$1,160.3 million made in FY2003
against the Group's property ponfoilo,‘:uch as Kennedy Town and Black’s Link, were written back.

Provisions of HK$213.4 million made in FY2003 on Maintand China hotels, ware written back.
However, 2 provision of HK$154.6 million was made for property projects Foshan Golf & Country Club
(Bumuxmxd), Taniin Xin Chun Hua Yuan (XMm®7ER) and Tienjin Xin An Garden
(RBFRER).

(n May 2004, NWTMT fited against the P Comp ot the Superior Court of the
State of California for the County of Santa Clara seeking recovery of Investments and damages in
excess of USD?00 million (equivalent to approximately HKS5,460 million). The Group made provisions
of HK$4,352.0 mliilion agalnst the Prediwave related investments and assets,

A provision of HK$797.4 million on the Impalrment loss of cable assets and others was made by NWT.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

et Debt (HKS mi

n} Y2001 £Y20

INFRASTRUCTURE

The Group's power plant operations benefited from surging electricity generation and consumption
caused by economic growth, especlally in Guangdong Province. Zhujiang Power Phase | & I
(RIRMM-RB=K) and Macau Power electricity sales increased by 16% and 7% respectively,

The toll income of Guangzhou City Northern Ring Road (3 # % i i % 2 13) increased by 19% mainly
from the reclassification of toll rates/vehicle types and Increased traffic. In addition, Tanjin Expressway
(Tlanjin North Section) (R 2Kl x R &R 2and Beljing-Zhuhai, Expressway (Guangzhou — Zhuhai
Section) (RXXAQRAAR also have suls!anor/ results.

The Group ¢ reviews its and dlvests low-ylelding assets, in November 2003,
the Group announced the dlspospl of the Zhaoging Roadways Network for a consideration of
approximately HK$1,168 billion. These disposals were all completed by the end of March 2004, .

The ‘profit contrlbution from the Water Treatment and Waste Management opera(lcns Increased in
FY2004 due to the improved performance of certain projects In Mainland China. The Macao Water
any Limited (M 8 k2 &AM 4 M) was once agaln the highest profit contributor whilst
the year, the Group contracted
new.Invastments in the water sector in Sanya City, Halnan Province (S ME =B %) and Tanggu District,
Tianjin (R MR E.

Due 1o the loss of one major customer at Container Terminat No. 3 and flerce_compatition from
Shenzhen ports, the Eroﬂt contribution from the port operations dro;:red 33%, (T8 West is
operational from October 2004, The ports of Tianjin and Xiamen continued to lead the way (n the
Mainland China port sector on the back of sofid expansion in trade flows and their throughputs grew
by 25% and '11% respectively.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

New World Mobllity (“NWM")

The subscriber base of NWM grew from 990,000 in June 2003 to 1 250 000 in June 2004, representing
a 26% Increzse. In FY2004, NWM recorded an EBIT of HK$216.4 mililon.

NWM became a listed company (n July 2004. in order to meet the demand of subscvlbers, NWM
signed a USD30 million contract with Nokia in June 2004 for expansion of its GSM network, inctuding
EOGE and Push to Talk over Celflular, to provide and | tti-media

New World Telecommunications {“NWT")

Consolidated net debt 21,613 nan
NWSH (stock code: 065%) 4,618 6,893
NWCL (stock code: 0917) 4,878 5122
NWTMT (stock code: 0301} 2,703 1,838
Net debt (exclude listed subsldlarles) 9,414 17,378

The Group reduced its consalidated net debt by HK$9,618 milllon. The gearing Is reduced from 68%
to 40%. Net finance costs were down 47% to HK$792.3 million. .

The Group's long term borrowing and shen term borrowing as at 30 june 2004 were HK525,307.4

million and HK$2,935.9 million respectively. Cash and bank balances as 2t 30 June 2004 amounted to
HK$6,630.0 miilion. The maturity of long term barrowlng as at 30 June 2004 s as follows:

. HKS$ milllon

within one year 5,959.9
In the second year 7,008.4
In the third to fifth year 12,080.8
After the fifth year 260.3
25,307.4 -

Shareholdars’ funds for the Group as at 30 June 2004 increased to HK$54.4 billlon agalnsl HK545.0
billion (restated) as of last year.

As at 30 June 2004, HK317,231.0 mililon (2003: HK$14, 258.0 million) o' total Group's assets were
pledged as securities for loans.

OUTLOOK

Both the Mainland China and Hong Kong economies continué to prosper. Pearl River Delta regional
co-operation will further drive the Hong Kong economy. The Group will leverage on its exposure In
the region to explore new opportunities and fuel the growth of Its core businesses, The Group's core
businesses, including properties and hotels, service and infrastructure and department stores, wii!
continue ta perform well and generate strong cash flow and aim at maintaining the gearing at a
comfortable level,

whlle the Group expects no major capital expenditure on TMT projects, It will consalidate the TMT
stable cash flow,

NWT focuses on 10D, data lines and broadband services, During the year, intense ¢
triggered the plunge of iDD rates which caused a negative EBIT of RK$163.3 milllon before other
charges.

NEW WORLD DEPARTMENT STORES ("NWDS")

NWDS benefited. from the graw!ng consumer market in Mainland Chma Total sales in FY2004
amaunted HK$3.3 billion, up 22% y . NWDS d to 15 stores across 10
cities in Mainland China and Hong Kang wkf\ a lolal GFA of 443,000 sq m.. NWDS opened new stores
in Shanghal Kongkou (W) in October 2003, in Kunming (28 in June 2004 and in Shanghal
Dingxi Road (= w2 1ss) In September 2004, The Gvoup plans to open two new stores in Ningbo (g@)
and Nanjing (R %) in coming months,

OTHERS

New World TMT Limited ("NWTMT")

NWTMT will focus on exlsnng pro;ecxs to generate cash flow and divest under-| perfmmlng}projects
WTMT will | synergies with NWT and to enhance China TMT marke!

dep(oymenl and reinforce its role as intermediary between China and the world in telecom and media

sectors.

Naw World China Enterprlsss

Since the inception of New Werld Liberty China Ventures Limited in Dacember 2000, ten projects
have been invested in and 65% of the initlal USD150 milllon capital has been invested In small and
medium-size enterprises in China, Amongst the investments, healthcare and automobile downstream
services achieved steady growth.

PROVISIONS AND OTHER CHARGES

Prowslonsrv'v’rlle back: Kenned( Town $38.5
Ink 386.4
Other. 235.3 1,160.2
e -
Pyovis)ons write-back: Hotels 213.4
Provisicns made: Properties {154.6) 58.8
NWTMT
P ions made: P related - (4,392.0
Other Investments - (757.2] (5,149.2)
tmpairment loss on NWT cable assets and others (797.4)
Others © (59.8)
Total (4,787.2)

EMPLOYEES

The Group has over 30,000 employees a( 30 June 2004, compared to 33,000 at 30 June 2003,
Remuneratlon policies are and bonuses are awarded to employees
based on individual performances and market practices. Education subsidies will be granted to
employees who are taking job-related courses. Periodic In-house training programs are also offered.
Under the share option schemes of NWTMT, NWCL and NWSH, options may be granted to certaln
Directors of the Company and certain employees of the Group to subscribe for shares In NWTMT and/
or NWCL and/or NWSH,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The annual results for the year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company. The
consolidated financial statements have beef audited by the joint auditors of the Company, and they
have issued a qualified opinion. Please refer to the Qualified Auditors’ Report section above.

DETAILED RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT

All the financial 2nd other related information of the Company requlred by pavagnphs 45(1) to 45(3}
of Appendix 16 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securitles on the Stock Exchange will be

. published on the Stock Exchange's website in due course.

For and on beha!f of the Board
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 15 October 1004 ’

As’at the date of this announcemenL (a) the executive directors of the Company are Dato’ Dr. CHENG
Yu-Tung, Or. CHENG Kar-Shun, Henry, Or. SIN WslKin, David, Mr. LIANG Chong-Hou, David and Mr.
LEUNG Chi-Kln, Stewart; {b) the non-executive directors of the Company are Mr. CHENG Yue-Pul, Mr,
CHENG Kar-Shing, Peter, Mr. CHOW Kwai-Cheung, Mr. HO Hau-Hay, Hamikion and Mr, LIANG Cheung-
Biu, Thomas and (¢) the independent non-executive directors of the Company are Lord SANDBERG,
Michael, Mr. YEUNG Ping-Leung, Howard, Dr. CHA Mou-Sing, Payson, 7, Mr. CHA Mou-Zing, Victor (as
alternate director to Dr, CHA Mou-Sing, Payson} and Mr. LEE Luen-Wai, John, sr. .
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R E S U LT S b Geographicat segments N
Tperating profit!
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT T e '::‘::f .
For the year ended 30 June 2004 Tarnover . ..ond ,’:,m,,m
; HKSm LMK
12003 -
HKSm Yeor 2004
: as” Hong Kong and Southeast Asia 12831 . 15712
* rastated) ’ Malnland China 27,3998 (1,847.4) b
restated) Horth America - 12,701,8)
N : ’ . 25.653.0 (2,578.0)
Tuthover : 125,65 . 210863 Yaar 2003 (a5 restated)
Cost of sales 5 | (16,912.8) Hong Kong and Southeast Asia 15.890.6 (1,952.0)
» Mainland China 50857 01,261.3)
g;‘:‘“ profit North Amerlca — (249.5) )
er revenues |
Other (chargel/income 3 . 119863 el
Selling and marketing expenses .
Administrative expenses 3. Othee (chargel/incoms ‘
Other operating expenses (1,895.5)
Operating loss befare financing ceosts and income .2 {3,964.8) .
Financing costs (1,824.1) satlon of -
Amortisation of 3
n. B h
Financing income 3979 Cost of invesiments In Jointly controlled entlties 010.4)
Operating oss 4 {5,451.0) g;;:hﬁ;ﬂtﬂ‘ costy ot :
“ w 2
Share of results of ey Dilution Yass on reorganisation of subsidisries (196.4) !
Associated companles 52547 937 Reorganisation expenses 6.9 .
Jointly controlled entities 8183 2127 Impairment lass o -
T 7 = Fixed assets (106.8) g
Lass before taxation it 17429,0) {5,144.6) Gobdwill , .0 . H
Taxation 5 :(980.2)s (317.4) intanglble assett - +
: § g Provision for investments in s
Loss after taxation )%12) (5,462,0) A jolnt property development project 6.3} ’
Minority Interests 754.3 Assoclated companies 8.2
5 Jointly controlled entitles 472}
Loss attributable to shareholders - Ve (4,707.7) List 1290
e Unlisted shares (82.4)
Dlvldemlis ) Pravision for
Interim paid HX30.02 per share {2003 HK$0.06) . Accounts receivable (38,51
Final of HK50.04 per share (2003: nil) Advances to assoclated companles (82.5) H
Advances to Jointly controlled entities 420.6) '
Loans 10 Investee companles - L
Other assets 13241
Loss per share 6 Other investments 1308.3)
v .. Basic HK5(1.96) | Payments on account ' . n1Lst
) Provision for diminution In valug o
Dituted Na properties held for sale 23503 ;
Dlvidends per share HK50.06 Loss on ditution of Interests In subsidiaries 0.3 .
P Premium on redemption of convertible bond (1.9 :
Weite back ofAprovision (o) revatuation deficlt of 8 hotel property 0733 '
Notes: Net profit/(loss) on disposs! of . :
g Assoclated companies 3t R .
1. Batls of preparation of financial statsments Jointly controfted entitles @48 :
Usted shares - .
Deferred taxatian Othet investments 714 .
. . Substdiaries 1876 B
fn order to comply with Ststement of Standard Accounting Practice 12 [tevised) *Income taxes” Issued by the Hong Brofic on partial disposal of subsidiales 564
Kong Institute of Cenified Public Accountants (previousty nemed the Hong Kong Society of Accountsnts), the Graup Surplus on llguidation of » subtidiary 643
adopted # new accounting policy for deferred tax with effect from 1 July 2003, Apart trom certain limited exceptions, Wiite down of $10cks to net cealisable value wsa.)
all deferred tax llabilitles, and all Geferred tax assets to the extent that it Is probable (hat future taxable profits will be Write back of Impaftment lass on
availabie against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. The amount of deferred tax recagnised Is measured Fixed atsets
based on the expecied manner of realisation o settiement of the careying amount af the assets and lisbillties, using tax A joinly controtied entity
rates enacted or substantively enscied at the belance sheet date. In prior years, deferred tax lisbllities were provided Write back of provition for
using the lability method in respect of the taxatlon effect arising from all material timing differences between the Oiminution In vatue of properties held for sale
accounting 3nd tax treatment of Incame and espenditure. which were expected with feasonable prababllity to Unllsted shares
crystallise in the foreserable future, Future Gelerced tax benelits were not recognised unless their teallsation was
assured beyond ressonable doubt,
As a result of the adoption of this palicy, the Group's opening reserves at 1 July 2002 and 2003 hava been reduced by 4. Gpwrating loss
HX$281,1 million and HX$179.0 milllon, respectively. This change has resufted in an lacrease In net deferred tax | s arrived at after charging the following:
Ulablilties of HKS941 million a5 3t 30 June 2003. The lasy for the year ended 30 June 200 has been reduced by Oparating loss of the Group I3 arved at ofter charging the following:
KK$103.8 milllon,
The new sccounting policy has been sdopted ang certain Ngures have been adjusted
sccordingly. Cost of Inventorley soid
2. Segment information Oepreciation and Bmortisation
> Business segments 3. Texatlon
Hong Kong profits 1ax hbs been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2001; 17.5%) on the sstimated assessable profits for the .
—peny Year. Tax on overseas profits has been cafculated on the esiimated taxable profits for the year at the rate of Laxatian :
e prevaliing In the countries in which the Group operates.
Gavetnpment
L
Externat salny 5950 10683 31y RESSY 12543 (R0 - 8810 Company and subsidiarles
PRy Hong Kong profits tax 1423
4 Ll L) = ed - LA - Overiess taxatlon 250 .
Total luinore RO 113802 [0 26404 32543 201).2 01,1892 156510 Undet/(aver) provisions in prior yesrs 12 })
- —— YT pery) o o T Ty o D;Y[:::gnl(l:lll(bn talating Lo the orginstion and reversal of temporary
O g e v . - w0 Gasn Defarred Loxatlon rasulting from an increase in tax rate
Unsticied comonny expenses ;
Operaning fons befory fnancing Assoclated eompanies §
costy and income Hong Kang profits tax ;
Year )Nl ln restated) - CQveryeas (axation
Exiern b LrsE czosss awes Lnaa e 13 - nows Oeferred taxstion
vt .
Sabeq Hio 1118 - .0 - 156 01,5435 -
ol tunaver 190 UL [N 1000 24033 13648 0508 2081 Jointly controlied entities !
Segmant rroas I3 e ) Tt w1 wa 2 Song Kong profics tax
o gy Deferred taxation
8503 - Rl ws s [IARIR.} [CREEET)
Uuh(ned COPEE npenles {400
Opetiting 135 briors randng
cons sa¢ income ad Taxatlon charge )
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Lots per shars

The calculation of bask: foss per share |5 based on the loss mrlbjubu o shareholderi of HK$976.2 milfion (2003:
testated lost of HK$4,707.7 mililon] and 1he weighted average number of 2.772.6 million (2003: 2,180.6 milllon} shares
n fssue dutlng the year,
No dilution effect was tesulted on Lha loss per share for the current ylu and the previous year after taking inte account
the potentta! dilutive effect of the convertible bonds which expired on 9 June 2004.

7. Comparative figures
Comparative figures for the segment Informatlion have been reclassified 1o conform with the cuttent years
piesentation.

QUALIFIED AUDITORS’ REPORT’

The Directors would ke to draw your attention that the report of the joint auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers and H.C. Watt & Company Limited, on the annua! accounts of the Group
for the year ended 30 June 2004 has been qualified. The relevant parts of the auditors’ report that
dealt with the qualification as well as the relevant notes to the accounts to which the auditors’ report
refers to are quoted as follows:

AUDITORS' REPORT

Basis of opinlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards Issued by the Hong
Kang institute of Certifled Public Accountants, except that the scope of our work was limited as
expialned belaw, *

An zudit idcludes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the accounts. It also Includes an assessmant of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors In the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policles are appropriate
to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned our audit so as to obtaln all the Information and explanations which we considered
necessary in erder to provide us with sufficient avidence to glve reasonable assurance as to whether
the accounts are free from material misstatemnent. However, the evidence avallable to us was limited
a5 set out below,

Fundamental uncertainty and timitation of oudit scope relating 1o pending litigations

As described in Note 34 to the accounts, New World TMT leltad 4 NW’TMT'), 8 54.44% owned listed
(*P

subsidiary, ¢ ed sgainst Pred ") and certain
companies associated with Prediwave (collactively the 'Prealwave Companles ) and Mr. Tony Qu,
the president and founder of the Prediwave Companies, NWTMT was seeking recovery of varlous
investmants in and other payments made by the Group to the Pradiwave Compsnies {the "NWTMT
Complalnt*). On the other hand, Prediwave also commenced litigations against NWTMT (the

“Prediwave Complalnt®), under which PrediWave alieged that NWTMT had falled to make full

payments under certaln purchase orders and an agreement of approximately US$59 milllan
(approximately HX$459 mililon). Prediwave claimed damages of not less than LSS58 million
(approximately HK$452 million) and ioss of profit of unspecified amount.

As more fully described in Note 34 to the accounts, in preparing the accounts, the directors have
concluded that a full provislon amounting to HK$3,082 millien against the Group's lnvestmems In the
Prediwave Companies, loans to the PredlWave Companl and de paid to Predi
(callectively the “Prediwave Assets®), is most appropriate for the purpose of the accounts for the
year ended 30 June 2004. In additlon, the directors have not made any provislon for any
! under the P in the accounts as they are of the view that the
Group has proper and valld defences to the Pred«w:ve Complaint,
As a rasult of the uncertainty of the timing and the outcome of the litigations which would have a
conséquential effect on the amount of assets recoverable, as well as the lack of updated meaningful
financlal informatlon on the Prediwave Companles, the evidence available to us for assessing the

carrying values of the PrediWave Assets, the propriety of the provislons made against the PrediwWave

Assets and any provislon for any commitment/loss under the Prediwave Complaint was limited. There
were no other practical satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt to assess the carrying
values of the Prediwave Assets, the propriety of the provislons made against the Prediwave Assets
and any provision for any loss under the P Complaint. Any adjustments to the
carrylng values of the P Assets ar p y for any /loss under the PrediWave
Complaint that might have been necessary should avidence become available to us would have &
consequential Impact on the Group's net assets at 30 June 2004 and the Group's loss for the year
then ended.

Limitation of audit scope relating o other Investments

included in other investments s an unlisted equity investment of approximately HK$377 million In
Inteliambda Systems inc. (*Intellambda®) which was acquired by NWTMT during the year. Mr. Tony Qu
is the chlel E:e:u\\ve Om:ev of Imellambda As descvlbed In Note 18 to the accounts, sufficient
financial It on was not to the directors. Notwithstanding that, the
directors remain confident In the technology and business operation of Intellambda and consider
that no provision for Impaitment In vslue of the Investment in Intellambda Is required. We were
unable to obtain sufficient explana(lons and evidence relating to the future prospect of Intellambda.
There were no other { isfy y sudit dures that we could adopt to assess the carrying
value of the investment In Intellambda as at 30 June 2004, Any adjustment that might have been
necessary should evidence become available to us would have a consequential impact on the Group's
net assets at 30 June 2004 and the Group’s loss for the year then ended.

in forming our opinion we 2150 evaluated the overall sdequacy of the presentation of informatlon in
the accounts. We believe that our audlt provides a reasonable basis for our oplinion.

Qualified oplnion arising from timitation of audit scope

Except for any adjustments that might have been found 1o be necessary had we been able to obtaln
sufficient evidence concerning the matters referred to In the “Basls of opinlon” paragraphs, In our
opinlon the accounts glve a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
a3 2t 30 June 2004 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Xong Companies Ordinance.

In respect alone of the limitation on our work relating to the matters described above, we have not
ob;alned all the information and explanallcns that we considered necessary for the purpose of our
audit.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
18, Other Investmants

(b) Also included In unlisted equity securitles is an unlisted equity investment of approximataty
HK$376.9 million In Intellambda Systems Inc. {“Intellambda”) which was acqulred by NWTMT
during the year, Mr. Tony Qu Is the Chlef Officer of 's
business objective I3 to develap optical transport and switching platform and provide -the
optical networklng sofutlons for carriers planning on building o upgrading their metro and
regional infrastructures, Based on the latest financial Information available to. NWTMT,
Intellambda was operating at a loss. The director nominated by NWTMT to Intellambda has
requested for further financial Information from Intellambda for the purpose of assessing the
carrying value of the investment In llambda, However, intell certain
conditions before it .would make avallable further financlal Information to the director
nominated by NWTMT to Intellambda. In view of the conditlons imposed, ne furthet

Page 2

Informatlon was obtalned from Intellambda. Despite the litigatlon against Mr. Tony Qu, the
directors of NWTMT remain confident in the technology held by Intellambda and consider
that there is no reason to belleve why Mr. Tony Qu would not pursue, if net harder because of
the presence of NWTMT as a shareholder keeping 2 close eye on the performance, the
business objective of Intellambda and make It 3 successful operation, As a resuly, the directors
of the Company consider that no provision for impairment in value of the investment in
Intellambda is required,

34. Pending titigations

(a) In May 2004, NWTMT, a 54.44% owned listed subsidlary, filed complalnts to the Superior
Court of the State of California for the County of Santa Clara in the United States of America
("US") ("NWTMT Complaint®) against the PrediWave Companies and Mr. Tony Qu, the
president and founder of the PrediWave Companies. Under the NWTMT Complaint, NWTMT
alleged that, in reliance of the representations given by Mr. Tony Qu and Pradiwave, NWTMT
entered into various agreements with the PrediWave Companies under which the Group
invested in the PrediWave Companies and placed vaslous purchase orders for goods and
services relating to the technology (the “Technology®) of video-on-demand and other digital
broadcasting and related technology and added value services, The Group had pald
approximately HK$S billion 10 the Prediwave Companies for investments in and loans to the
- Prediwave Companies, and purchases of goods and services from Prediwave. NWTMT
complalned of various breachas, In refation 1o goods and services relating to the Technolegy,
by Mr. Tony Qu and the Prediwave Companles relating to the parties’ agreements.
Accordingly, NWTMT claimed damages for an amount to be daetermined at trial together with
interest, rescission of all agreements, restitution of all monies obtained from the Group,
punitive and exemplary damages, costs of legal proceedings and other declaratory rellef and
equitable relief, The total monetary amount sought by NWTMT in the law sult exceeds

US5$700.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$5,460.0 million).

The directors of NWTMT have been advised by thelr external lagal counsel that the NWTMT
Complaint will not be concluded in & short period of time and the outcome of the NWTMT
Complaint Is uncertain,

Based on the unaudited of the Predi' C les a3 at 31
December 2003 which were obtal prior to t ment of the NWTMT Complaint,
there was a balance of appvozlmalely USS!MO milllon (equlvatent to approximately
HK$2.683.0 million) In thelr bank accounts.

In June 2004, with the objective of pi g improper d of funds, Mr. Jimmy L,
the director nominatad by NWTMT to certain Prediwave Companies sought to exercise the
co-signing rights In relatlon to withdrawals of funds In excess of US$0.5 million from the bank
accounts of certain Prediwave Companies by reguesting a temporary restraining order from
the court. However, such request was denfed by the Superior Count of the State of California
for the County of Santa Clara In tha US,

In August 2004, the Superior Court of the State of Californla for the County of Santa Clasa in
the US made an order in faveur of Mr, Jimmy LI permitting him to inspect all corporate books
and records of cerntain Prediwave Companies, Mr. Jimmy Ll Is assisted by an accounting flrm in
the US to Inspect-the books and records but no financial inf has been
extsacted a5 of the date of approval of the accounts,

As the directors of NWTMT were unable to freeze the bank accounts or enforce the co-signing
fights, the directors of NWTMT consider that they cannot etectively monitar the utilization of
funds by the Prediwave Companias. Notwithstanding that the bank balance of the PrediWave
Caompanies were appraximately US$344.0 million as at 31 December 2003 based on their
unaudited mansgement accounts, the directors of NWTMT expect that the wtilization of funds
for legal costs and cther causes beyond thelr contral will be significant throughout the period
up to the date when the NWTMT Complaint Is :on:luded in addition, ln \he absem:e of lhe
avallabllity of meaningful and updated financlal inf lon on the di

and given the uncertainty of the timing and the outcome of the lltlgnuen which would have a
consaquential effect on the amount of assets recoverable, the directors of the Campany have
concluded that a full provision of HK$3,082.0 million made against the Group's Investments in
the PrediWave Companles, loans to the Prediwave Companles and deposits paid to
Pradiwave is most appropriste for the purpose of the accounts for the year ended 30 June

(b) tn May 2004, Prediwave filed complaints to the Superior Court of the State of California for
the County of Los Angeles in the-US sgainst NWTMT (the *PrediWave Complaint’). Under the
Prediwave Complaint, PradiWave alleged that NWTMT had failed to make full payments under
three purchase orders and one agreement for goods and services delivered or licenses
granted by PrediWave to the Group relating to the Technology with an cutstanding amount
of approximately US$58.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$459.0 million). Prediwave
claimed damages against NWTMT in an amount to be proved at trlal, but not less than
US$58.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$452,0 million) togather with interest and
casts of legal proceedings, and » declaration that NWTMT should pay PrediWave the profits

. Prediwave would have recelved had NWTMT performed Its obligations under various
puichase order and agreements and that Prediwave should be entltled to ratain the deposits
made by NWTMT thereunder.

The directors are of the view that the Group has proper and valld defences to the Prediwave
Complaint, and accordingty, no pravision for commitment/loss has been accounted for in the
accounts,

ODIVIDENDS

The Directors have resolved 10 recommend 8 final dividend In serip form equivalent 1o HKS0.04 per IM; with a cash option
to shareholders registered on 7 December 2004. Togethar with the interlm dividend of HK$0.02 per share paid in May 2004,
the total dlstribution for 2004 would thus be KK$0.05 per share [2003; HK30.08 per share),

Subject to the Usting Cornmities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limhted (*the Stock Exchange®) granting listing of
and permission 1o Geal In the new shares, each sharehotder will be aliotied fully pald shares having an aggregate market
value equal 10 the total amount which such shareholder could elect 10 receive In cash and that they be given the option to
elect ta recelve payment in cash of HKS0.04 pec share instead of the afiotment of shares. Full detalls of the scrip dividend
will be st out in a letter 10 be sent to shareholders togethar with & form of election for cash on or about 7 Decembar 2004,

BOOK CLOSE DATES

Book close dates {both days inclusive)
Latest time to lodge transfer with Registrar
Address of Reglstrar

1 December 2004 to 7 December 2004

30 November 2004, Tuesday«4:00 p.m,

Tengls Limitad, Ground Floor, Bank of East
Asla Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester
Road, wanchal, Hong Kong

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiarles has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares during the year,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except for pending Iltlgauons as referred to In note 34 of the accounts quated above, the Group's
other contingent liabilities a3 at 30 June 2004 amounted ta HKX$9,311.1 million,
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BUSINESS REVIEW

SEGMENT ANALYSIS (INCLUDING ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES}

- Segment contributién

froperty sales {270.6)
Rental 576.4
Service 584.7
Infrasteucture 1,352.3

Telecommunications s
Department stores R 40,2
Others i (450.6)
Segment resuits ' 7]

PROPERTY

Hong Kong Property Development

The property market in Homg Kong rebounced in the fourth quarter of 2003. Since then, both volume
and pricing recorded solld growth, The Group sold 1,136,977 sq. ft. In Hong Kohg comparing to
660,347 sq. f1. in FY2003, In FY2004, the Group completed the development of No. 2 Pask Road and
Bon-Point at Mid-Levels of Hong Kong Island: Parc Palals, Sky Tower and Kingsford Terrace in
Kowloon,

The Group now has a landbank of 5.54 million sq. ft, which Is enough for meeting its development
needs for three to four years. Moreover, the Group has a total 20 miflion sq. ft. of agncullural fand
reserve.

Development projects

Page 3

Hotel in' Malnland China - Number of rooms

New World Courtyard Hotel, Beljing (L RM G R X 2 X) 293
Jing Guang New World Hotel, Belling (St X m e A RIA) 444
Mayfair Hotel Shangha! (b WD R & XX B A) 860
New World Hotel, Shenyang (%@ Metnmm) 261
New World Courtyard Hotel, Shunde (W8 5% &t 55 X th 8 ) 176
New World Courtyard Hotel, Wuxi (#8258 # ) ta 5 ) 243
Grand New Warld Hotel, Xian (AR SR AXEE) 451
Total 2,968

Malnlang China Property

New World Ching Land Limited (*"NWCL®), the Group's 70%-owned Maintand China property arm, hat
currently a property portfofio of 36 major development property projects with 3 total GFA of 16
mittion sq. m. across 17 citles,

For the year under review, NWCL has d 15 property d ment projects In 10 cities with a
tatal GFA of 987,283 5q. m., an Increase of 39% year-on-year. Area sold surged 62% to 909,772 sq. m,
in FY2004,

Davelopment property projects completed during FY2004

Beljing Xin Kang Garden Phase Il (axMmx@=m)
Beljing Xin Yu Garden Block 3 & 4 (Z XWX REI « amA)
Chateau Regalla Beljing (L RERE®)

Tianjin New World Garden Phase | (RN R EE—R)

Tianjin New World Garden Phase Il (X ¥ & A EE KD

Shenyang New World Garden Phase IC (I & AIZM —C)

Dafian Manhattan Tower i (XM ERAXE =

Wuhan Menghu Garden Phase (A (RIS 282 18 — KA}

Jinan Sunshine Garden Phase | (M M8 % 1t 2 — &)

Nanjing New World Centre (WEUH & ) 2
Guangzhou Covent Garden Phase Il (RAREAR=R 28,918

. f
Hong Kong lsland yparlds G(”;?«g:':; 5’:1':"’-' za;; view Phase ! ] 62,704 $1%
owloon. 957,91 !
NT excluding those agricultural and pending for land conversion 2,835,215 G;J;r;ﬂg;);:;:;wmﬁa_rlldvo'lemal Garden Phase ! R 172,715 100%
Total 5,541,775 Guangzhou Xintang New World Garden Phase 11
- CET T L LT3 B3 R 49,913 60%
Hulyang Palm istand Resort Phase [V (XK 5 B Reson % &) R 40,372 34%
Aurlbmable Shunde New World Convéntion & Exhibition Centre Phase 1l
. s Total land area . land area (L L3 Th GRS 20,527 35%
Agritultural landbank by location : (sq. fr.} (sq. ft.) Total 997,283
Yuen Long o 14,420,000 12,937,100
Shatin/Tai Po 3,414,000 2,528,000
Fanling B 2,310,000 2,310,000 R t Residential
Tuen Mun - 120,000 120,000 4 i Commercial
Sai Kung : 1,908,000 1,668,000 o] B Office N
Total 22,169,000 19,563,100 . .
Shanghai Hong Kong New World Tower was completed [n October 2003 with satlsfactory accupency,
The Group's investment portfolio now increased to 1.2 million sq. m, comprising retall, office, hoteis,
The Group I3 actively negotiating with government on agricultural Jand canversion, However, during service apartments and carpark at prime locations of high growth citlas. The Central Governmant
FY2004, only one site of GFA 260,000 sq. . was concluded In June 2004, Severa! leading developers  announced austerity measures on the control of financizl credit and land supply which are considered
volced out difficulties In closing agricultural land premium negotlations with the government due to for the fong-term healthy growth of the reaf estate industry. The gist of the credit tightening and land
dlfferences In price expectations. policy is to reduce Irregularities and improve transparency.
Strong competitlon at the auctions for 2 major sites in Homantin and San Po Kong on 12 October
2004 7ur\h=v confirmed the upturn of the Hong Kong property market. In FY2005, eg an attributable Development property _proJecla to be compieted in FY2005
basis, the Group has 1.8 million sq. f1, property, ncluding inventory and projects to be launched for
sale. Projects to be launchad in the coming months inciude Kennedy Town Redevelopment, Black's Projects
Link, Tseung Kwan O Area S5b, Lau Fau Shan and Fu Tei projects.
Beljing Xin Kang Garden Phase Il (L XMW= R
Beijing New World Garden Phase Il (L R¥F%ARR=R) R
Beljing Xin Cheng Commerclal Bullding (i i x &t X&) Q
Beljing Xin Yang Commercial Building (4 X 1513 %5 5 i8) [
inventory compleled before FY2005 332,668 wuhan Menghu Garden Phase 18 (st X33 % 15— me) R
Caldecott Hill (BmRwW 31,220 Wuhan Xin Huz Garden Phase Il (R K S R®& =) a
33 & 35 island Road (# A 33R 3510) 27,438 Jinan Sunshing Garden Phase il (KR X E® =) R
Kennedy Town Redevelopment (RE AW N X B) 676,687 Nanjing New World Centre (MBS & Ao L) [
6-10 Black’s Link (15 1 F6-10R) 27,814 Guangzhou Cavent Garden Phase 1l (% KA X 5% =m) R 67,896
Tseung Kwan O Area 55b (@ X K550 A E) Guangzhou Central Park-view Phase 18
Lot No. 3569 In DD129, Lau Fau Shan (SR E) (‘Mnﬂﬁua’[‘ »e) R 73,964 91%
3 Tuen Kwal Road, Fu Tel (AmqRasn) 196,744 hou Park Paradise Phase Il (i # W 1% & 1 2 00 = W) R 74,729 60%
Total 1,770,429 Guangzhou Park Paradise Phase Il (RMAMBEEAREZ ) R * g,788 50%
Xintang New World Garden Phase (|
(R 44 2% o0 5 4 1. 26 £ = O08) g R 37,000 60%
Hong Kong Property investment Rulyang Palm Island Resort Phase V (K& M & ResotE X0 R 32,000 34%
increase of Individual travellers from Mainland China and overseas spur the retail traffic. Located at Hulzhou Changhuyuan Phase Il (8 # & 25 = M) R 60,062 so%
the Tsimshatsul Promenade and next to New Worid Centre, the "Avenue -of Stars”, a major new Shenzhen New World Y1 Shan Garden Phase If "
attraction donated by the Group to honaur Hong Kong's film professionals, made a big draw for Zr‘f""f‘””‘“m‘;’i" 4 h I R 36,088 90
tourlsts and locals alike after its completion. The manthly visitor flow for the Avenue of Stars was over uhal New World Riviera Garden Phase
1 million after its launch In April 2004, Pedestrian traffic is expected to be further enhanced with the [CLELTL LS FE - i 29,469 100%
completion of the KCR East Tsimshatsui Station and its associated road works outside New World Total 707,205
Centre by the end of October 2004, Higher traffic may translata into positive rental revision at New
World Centre,
Hong Kong office rental market bottomed at end of 2003 with both effective rent and occupancy Investment properties. to be completed Iin FY2005
firming up.
Hotels . g g
. Hong Kong hatels have improved significantly In both occupancy and average room rate. The Group's w(‘g‘;“.':‘;'(;':d;)"‘ Commerce Centre Phase il 44,840
hotel operations regained thelr profitability to the pre-SARS level, Guangzhou Central Park-view Phase 18
China Hotel In Guangzhou was reverted to Guangzhou Municipal government after the expiry of the {(RMRIZY & N XS —XIB) RCO 39,782 91%
contract in June 2004, In FY2004, the 860-room Mayfalr Hotel Shanghai was completed to enhance Total . 84,622
our Mainland China hote! portfolio to 7 hotels providing 2,968 guest rooms, - -
L
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SERVICE
Hong Kong enjoyed a fast-paced recovery after SARS. With strong support from tha Central
Government — seen In measures such as the endorsement of CEPA and the lifting of travel

Kong — the majority of service operations have

restrictions on Mainlanders wishing to visit Hon
he overall performance of Service operations for

benefitad from the ensuing economic revival.
Y2004 was satisfactory.

HKCEC achleved an encouraging result due to the guick recavery in tourism, retail, and consumer
related businesses, as well as from the spill-over effect of the post-SARS business rescheduling of
many exhibitions and conventions. The occupancy of the HKCEC for the year was comparable to
these of previous years when mega functions such as ITU — Telecom Asia were held.

Property management produced a satisfactory result. As at 30 June 2004, Urban Property
Management managed a total of 1.8 million sq. m. of commerclal/industrial areas, 180,000
residentlal flats, and 33,000 car park spaces. Klu Lok achieved sound results, mainly attributable to

Page 4

Hong Kong preperty had a shatp rebounce in the fourth quarter of 2003, Since then, the volume and
pricing of Hong Kong property both grew firmly, Provisions of HK$1,160.3 million made in FY2003
agalnst the Group’s property portfollo, such as Kennedy Town and Black's Link, were written back.

Provisions of HK$213.4 million made In FY2003 on Mainland Chins hotels, were written back,
However, b provision of HK$154.6 million was made for property projects Foshan Golf & Country Club
(Muwmu KM x2S), Tanjin Xin Chun Hua Yuan (RMMSER) end Tlanfin Xin An Garden
(RRERED.

In May 2004, NWTMT filed laints against the Pred Companies at the Superior Count of the
State of Callfornia for the County of Santa Clara seeking recovery of investments and damages In
excess of USD700 million {equivalent to approximately HK$5.460 millien), The Group made provisions
of HK$4,392.0 million against the PrediWave related Investments and assets,

A provision of HK$797.4 milllion on the impairment loss of cable assets and others was made by NWT,

the improved activities In the Mainland China agency and property b

Construction operations faced tough market environment resulting from the sluggish property
construction market.

Sky Connection Limited, which has exclusive tight to retall duty free liquor and tobacco in Hong Kong
International Airport and ferry 1erminals, delivered satisfactory results,

The Group's transport operations have yet to regain passenger patronage back (o the pre-SARS level.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Consolidated net debt 21,613 7

Moreover the surglng fuel costs coupled with kaen competltion from other mode of transport have X

put pressure on the profitability, The Group’s investment In Kunming (®4) bus service which :xé’c ((:::::::g: 331579)) ::g;:

commenced business in early 2004, made an iImmediate profit contribution. NWTMT (stock code: 0301) 2,703
Net debt {exclude listed subsidiaries) 9,414

INFRASTRUCTURE

The Group's power plant cperations benefited from surging electricity generation and consumption
caused by economic growth, especially In Guangdong Province. Zhujiang Power Phase i & I
(ZORNX -~ W= and Macau Power electricity sales ncreased by 16% and 7% respectively,

The toll income of Guangzhou City Northern Ring Road (M # % & R %8 2 13) (ncreased by 19% malnly
from the reclassification of toll rates/vehicle types and increased traffic, In addition, Tanjin Expressway
(Tianjin North Section) (s EIm 2% X% £ R) and Beljing-Zhuhal Expressway (Guangzhou — Zhuhal
Section) (RMATABAMA) also have satisfactory results,

The Group continuously reviews its investments and divests law-ylelding assets. In November 2003,
the Group announced the disposal of the Zhaoqing Roadways Network for a consideration of
approximately KK$1.168 billian. These disposals were all completed by the end of March 2004,

The profit contribution from the Water Ti and Waste Mar 9 operations increased in
FY2004 due to the Improved performance of certain projects In Mainland China. The Macao Water
Supply Company Limited (RM B R AR & AR LK) was once agaln the highest profit contributer whilst
the Chongqlng (R @) operations had 3 full-year contribution. During the year, the Group contracted
new (nvestments in the water sector in Sanya Clty, Hainan Province (g ma = & %) and Tanggu Dlstrict,
Tianjin (Xmw RS K.

Due to the loss of one major customer at Container Terminal No, 3 and fierce competition from
Shenzhen ports, the profit contribution from the port operations dropped 33%. CT8 West is
operational from October 2004. The parts of Tianjin and Xlamen continued to lead the way In the
Malnlang China port sector on the back of solid expansian In trade flows and thelr throughputs grew
by 25% and '11% respectively,

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

New World Mobllity ("NWM")
The subscriber base of NWM grew from 990,000 in June 2003 to 1,250,000 In June 2004, representing
2 26% Increase, in FY2004, NWM recorded an E8IT of HK5216.4 million.

NWM became a listed company in July 2004. In order to meet the demand of subscribers, NWM
signed 2 USD30 milllon contract with Nokla in June 2004 for expansion of its GSM network, including
EDGE and Push to Talk over Cellular, to provide advanced and il i Iti-medi.

New World Telecommunications ("NWT")

NWT focuses on IDD, data lines and broadband services. During the year, Intense competition
triggered the plunge of IDD rates which caused a negative EBIT of HK$163.3 milllon before other
charges,

NEW WORLD DEPARTMENT STORES {"NWDs")

NWDS benefited. from the growing consumer market In Mainland China, Total sales in FY2004
amounted HK$3.3 billion, up 22% year-on-year. NWDS operations expanded to 15 stores across 10
cltles in Mainland China and Henf Kong with a totsl GFA of 443,000 "1‘ m.. NWDS opened new stores
in Shanghal Hongkou (LM o) in October 2003, in Kunming (B8} in June 2004 and In Shanghai
Dingxi Road {: Mz W) In September 2004, The Group plans to cpen two new stores in Ningbo (%)
and Nanjing (mX) in coming months.

OTHERS

New World TMT Limited ("NWTMT")

NWTMT will focus on existing projects to generate cash flow and divest under-performing projects,
Furthermere, NWTMT will leverage synergles with NWT and NWM to enhance China TMT market
deployment and reinforce Its role as intermediary between China and the world in telecom and media
sectors.

New World China Entsrprises

Since the inception of New World Libarty China Ventures Limited in December 2000, ten projects
have been Invested in and 65% of the initial USD150 mililon capital has been invested In small and
medium.size anterprises In China. Amongst the investments, healthcare and automoblle downstream
services achieved steady growth.

PROVISIONS AND OTHER CHARGES
Provisions and Other Charges (HKS million)

HK pro;
Prev'?s’lo%:r;tyme-back: Kenned( Town
B\(a"ck‘s ink
ers

1,160.2

NWCL
Provisions write-back: Hotels 213.4
Provisions made: Propertles (154.6) 58.8
NWTMT
P made: P related (4 392,0;

Other investments {7572 (5.148.2)
impairment loss on NWT cable assets and others {797.4)
Others (59.6)
Total (4,787.2)

The Group reduced its consolidated net debt b) HK$9,618 million, The gesring Is reduced from 68%
to 40%. Net finance costs were down 47% to HK$792.3 million,

The Group's long term borrowing and short term borrowing as at 30 June 2004 were HK$25,307.4
million and HK52,935.9 million respectively, Cash and bank balances as at 30 June 2004 amounted to
HK$6,630.0 million, The maturity of long term borrowing a3 2t 30 June 2004 (s as follows:

. HKS million

Within one year 5,959.9
In the second year 7.006.4
in tha third to fifth year 12,080.6
After the fifth year 260.3
25,3074

Sharehotders' funds for the Group as at 30 June 2004 Increased to HK354.4 billlon agalnst HK546.0
billion {restated) as of last year.

As at 30 June 2004, HK$17,231,0 milllon {2003: HX$14,258.0 milllon) of total Group’s assets were
pledged as securitles for loans.

OUTLOOK

8oth the Mainland Chinz and Hong Kong economies continue to prosper. Pearl River Delta reglonal
co-operation will further drive the Hong Kon? economy, The Group will leverage on its exposure in
the reglon to explare naw opportunities and fuel the growth of its core businesses. The Group’s core
businesses, including properties and hotels, service and infrastructure and department stores, will
continue to perform well and generate strong cash flow and aim at malintaining the gearing at a
comfortable level. -

While the Group expects no major caplital expenditure on TMT projects, it will consolidate the TMT
businesses 10 generate stable cash flow.

EMPLOYEES

The Group has over 30,000 employees at 30 June 2004, compared to 33,000 at 30 June 2003,
R ation policles are revi d annually. R fon and bonuses are awarded to employees
based on individual performances and market practices. Education subsidies will be granted 1o
employees who are taking Job-related courses. Periodic in-house training programs are also offered.
Under the share option schemes of NWTMT, NWCL and NWSH, options may be granted to certaln
Directors of the Company and certain smployees of the Group to subscribe for shares in NWTMT and/
or NWCL and/or NWSH, )

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The annual results for the year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company. The
consalldated flnancial statements have been audited by the joInt auditors of the Company, and they
have issued a guallfled opinion. Please refer to the Qualified Audltors’ Repont section above.

DETAILED RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT

All the financial and other related Information of the Company required by paragraphs 45{1) to 45(3)
of Appendix 16 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securltles on the Stack Exchange will be
published on the Stock Exchange's website In due course.

For and on behalf of the Board
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Managing Diractor

Hong Kong, 15 October 2004

As at the date of this announcement, (3) the executive directors of the Company are Dato’ Dr, CHENG
Yu-Tung, Dr. CHENG Kar-Shun, Henry, Dr. SIN Wal-Kin, David, Mr. LIANG Chong-Hou, David and Mr.
LEUNG Chi-Kin, Stewart; (b) the non-executive directors of the Company are Mr, CHENG Yue-Pul, Mr.
CHENG Kar-Shing, Peter, Mr. CHOW Kwai-Cheung, Mr, HO Hau-Hay, Hamilton and Mr. LIANG Cheung-
Biu, Thomas and (c} the independent non-executive directors of the Company are Lord SANDBERG,
Michae!, Mr. YEUNG Ping-Leung, Howard, Or. CHA Mou-Sing, Payson, J», Mr. CHA Mou-Zing, Victor (as
altesnate director to Dr, CHA Mou-Sing, Paysen) and Mr, LEE Luen-Wal, John, Jr. B
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: New World Development Company Limited

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

{Stock Code: 17)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING'

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that an Annuasi General Meeilng of the Company wili be held at Meeting Room 201B (New wing),
HMong Kong Conveation & Exhibitlon Centre, 1 Expo Drive, Wanchal, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 7 December 2004 at 3:30 p.m. for
the following purpeses:

1.

Yo consider snd adopt the audited Statement of Accounts and the Repert of Directors and Auditars for the year ended

30 June 2004

To declare & final dividend.

To re-elect Directors and suthorise the Directors to fix thelr remuneration.

To re-appoint Joint Auditors snd authoilse the Diractors 1o fix thelr samunesstion.

As speclal business to consider and, It thought fit, pass with or without modifications, the foliowing resolution as an

Ordirary Rasotution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

THAT:

(@ subject to paragraph [b) below, the exercise by the Directats of the Company during the Relevant Perlod (a1
hecelnafter deflned) of slt the pawert of the Company to repurchase shares of HK$1.00 exch In the capital of
the Company on The Stack Exchange of Hong Xeng Limiled ["Stock Exchange‘) or any other 1tock exchange
on which the securltlas of the Company may be listed and recognised by the Securities 5nd Futures
Commission of Hong Kang and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject o and In connection with alt

i laws and the req of the Aules rerning the Listing of Securlties on the Stock Exchange
o of any other stock exchange as amended from time 10 time. be and Is heraby generally and unconditionally
1pproved;

) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Campany whith the Directors of the Company Is authorlsed to
tepurchise pursusnt to the spprovat In paragraph (3} above shall not exceed 10% of the aggregste nominal
amount of the Issued share capital of the Company as st the date of passing this Resolution and the said
approval shatl be limited sccordingly: and

e} for the purposes of this Resolution,

“Relevant Perlod” mesns the period from the passing of this Resofution untll whichever is the earlier of;

10 tne”conclusion of \he next annush generst meeting of the Company:

{il) the expirstion of the perlod within which the next annual @enessl meeting of the Company Is
required by law to be held; and

any the date on which the suthorlty set out In this Resolution is revoked of varled by an oedinsry

resolution of the shareholders in general meeting.®
As spects! business ta consider and. if thought fit, pass with or without modifications, the fellowing resolutian as an
Ordinary Resolution:
ORDINARY RESOLUTION
THAT

) subject 10 parsgraph (ci below and pursusnt to Section 578 of the Companies Ordinance, the exescise by the
Ditectors of the Company during the Relevant Period {as hereinafter deflned) of all the powers of the
Company to aflot, issue and desl with additional shares of MK$1.00 each In the caplial of the Compeny and to
make of grant offers, agreements and options (Including bends, warrants and debentures convertible Inta
shares of the Company) which would or might require the exercise of 1uch power b and Is hereby genarally
ang_unconditionsily approves;

(G the dpproval in paragraph {a) above shall suthorlse the Directors of the Company during the Relevint Perlod
(as hereinofter defined) 10 make or grant offers, sgreements and uptions (including bonds, watrants and
debentures convertible inta shires o' the Campany) which would or migist require the exercise of such power
after the end of the Relevent Perio:

1] the agfveque nominal amount of lhlve capital allotted or sgreed conditionally or uncondifionally to be
allorted (whether pursuant ta an option or otherwise) and lisued by the Directors of the Company puriuant to
the approval |a paragraph (3} above, otherwise than pursuant to (1} » Rights Issue, (H) an Issue of shares as
serip. dlvl pursuant to the artlcles of lnu(llﬂon of the Company from time to time; (i) an lssue of
shar ny option scheme or similar srrangemaent for the time belng adopted for the grant or Issue to
uno’byeu orthe Company and/ac any of 1 subsidiacles of shares of cights to equire shares of the Camosny:
of (Iv] an (ssue of shares Upon conversion by the bondholders of thesr bonds Inta shares of the Company in
accordance with 1he terms and conditions of an Issue of convertiple guaranieed bonds by & special purpose
subsidlary whally owned by the Company, shall not exceed 20% of the sggregate nominal amount of the
issued share capital of the Campnny a$ at the date of passing this Resolution, and the ssid approval shall be
limited accordingly: and L.

[CH for \he purpose of this Resolutlnn,
‘Relevant Perlod” mesns the period from the passing of this Resolution untll whichever s the eatlier of:
[0} the conctusion of the next annusl general meeting of the Company;
[ the explistion of the puloa wnmn which the next annuat qlﬂ al maeting of the Company Is
faquired by law 1o be held;
wm the date on which (he nnhallly set oul In this nuoluuan s revoked or varied by an ordinary

resplution of the shareholders In genera! meeiing: a
“Rights (skue’ means an offer of shares open for a period n..u by the Directors of the Company to the holders
of shates of the Company on the reglster on a fixed record date |n proportlon to their then holdings of such
Shates a5 at that date (3ubject to such #xciusions of othes srrangements as the Oirectors of the Company may
deem necesssry or expedient In relation to fractional entitlements or g regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any u:agnma regulatory body or any steck eachange
In, any tetritory outside Hong Kong applicable to the Company).’
As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as an
Qrdinary Resolution;

3

ORDIMARY RESOLUTION
“THAT subject to the passing of Resolution Nos. 5 and & set out In the notice convening this meeting, the general
mandete granted to the Directors of the Company to allot and dea! with additional shares pursvant to Resslution No. 6
rel Sut In the nollce convening this meeting be and iy hereby extended by the additlon thereto of an amount
reprasenting the aggregate nominal ameunt of thires I the capital of the Company rapurchased by \ha Company
under the authority granted pursuant 1o Resolutlen No. § set cut In the notice convening this meeting, provided that
such amount of shares 3o repurchased fhatl not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the Issued share
capitat of the Company a5 at the date of passing the sald Fesolution.”
As special business to consider and, If thought fit, pass the following fesolution as 4 Specisl Resolutton:

SPECIAL RESOLUTION
*THAT the Articies of Assochation of the Company be and are hereby smended in the following manner:

() Anticle 2
[u] by deleting the existing definition of *Mong Kong® in ity entirety and substituting therefor the
followlng new definition and its marginal aote:
"Hong Kong® shall mean the Hong Kong Spechl Administrative Reglon of  Hong Kong.
The People’s Republic of China;

W By deleting the existing definiton of ‘assaciata’ in its entirety and substituting therslo the following
ew definition and its marginal o
'u:ud ¢ shall have the mnnlnn nu(bed to it under the Listing Rules;  sisaclate.
Wy by adding the words “for Administration® fier the words ‘Chiel Sectesry” in the defintion of
‘aewspapt
(v} by ned]ng me foliawing new definitions and thelr marginal notes immedlately after the definition of
“statutes”:

m. S(n:k Exchange® shall mean The Stock Exchange of Honp Kong Stock Exchange.
ted;

'(hc Llu\ng Rules* shall mean the Rules Governing the Ulllnq of Secutlties Listing Rues.
on the Stock Exchange and sny amendments thereto for the time
hc!nq In force;
ing house® shall mean 3 recognized ¢l house within the clearing house,
mesning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kongl:
v by deleting the ex!sting definition of “statutes” In Ity entirety and subttituting therefor the follawing
few definltion and i3 marginet note;
‘statutes” shall mean the prevailing laws of Hong Kong including any stotutes,
statutory modifications from time to time:

*cle.

(L3 Articte 6
0] by deleting the words "The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited” after the word ‘00’ In the twelfth
and thirteenth lines of Article 6 and substituting therefor the words "the Stock Exchange”:
) by deleting the woids ‘The Stock Exchange of Mong Kong Limited” afler the word *on’ In the

filteenth line of Atuicie 6 and substtuting therefor the words ‘the Stock Exchange'.

(el

o}

(e}

!

in

o

k)

(0]

il

to}

o}

(q)

4]

* Article 16

by demlna Article 16 In ts entitety and substituting therefor the following new Article and tta marginal note:

Every prrion whole name is eriered in the register 35 3 holder of any Share cantifioates,
shares shlﬂ be entitted 1o recelve within such period of time as prescribed by the
Compenies Qrdinance or the Listing Rules sfter sliotment or lodgement of & transfer
10 him of those shares (or within such other period a3 the terms of issue shall
provide) one certificate for ali those shares of any one class or several certificates
each for one or more of the shares of the class In question upon paymant, (i) In the
case of an allotment, for every certificate after the Arst of such sum (f any) Aot
exceeding the maximum amount prescribed from time to time by the Stock
Exchange or (i} In the case of & transfes, of such tum (If any) not exceeding the
maximum smount prescriced from time to time by the Stock Exchange. (n the tase
of a share held [ointly by severs! persons, the Company shall not be bound 10 Issue
more 1han ohe certificate tharefor and delivary of a tertificate to bne of 1evenst
jolat hotdets shall be sufficient delivery to 8!, A membes who transfers some but
not all of the shares comprised in & unlﬂnu |h| be entitied 10 2 certificate for
the balance with a fee (If any) not I @ from
time 1o time by the Stock Exchenge.

Articie 20

by defeting the wardi "HKS$2.5 (of such other smount & y from time to time be permitiad under the rutes
prescribed by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong umuwy' after the word “exceeding’ in the second Hna of
Articte 20 and substituting therefor the words ‘the maximum amount prescribed from sime o time by the
Stock Exchange’,

Article 27

by Inserting the words ‘or by any means and in such mannet as may be sccepted by the Stock Exchange
the end of Article 27,

Article 37
by daleting Article 37 In its entlrety and substituting therefor the foliawing new Article and its margins! note:

37. Al translers of shares may be effected by sn Instrument of transler In Form of transfer,
the usual or comman form or In such other form a3 prescribed by the Stock
Exchange o in such form ax the Board may accept and may be under hsnd or, if
the transfesor or transferen Is » clearing house twithin the meaning of the Secur
and Futares Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Xong)l of Its naminese(s),
by hand or by machine Imprinted signature or by such other manner of execution
a3 the Board may approve from time to time. All Inscruments of transfer must be
feft at the registered office or at such other place as the Board may appoint,

Article 40

by deleting the words "HKS2.5 (of such other amount »s may from time to time be permitted under tha rules
prescribed by The Stack Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) of such fesser sum* sfier the word ‘of* In lhc ﬂru
{Ine of paragraph (1) of Articla 40 and substituting therefor the words ‘such sum not exceeding th
amount prescribad from Ume 1o time by ihe Stotk Eacnange’.
Article 43

by deleting the words “withoul charge' after the words ‘issued” and "him* In (h. third -nd tixth Hnes of
Article 43 and substituting therefor the words "with a fee no the unt pi

from time 10 time by the Stock Exchange’ respectively,

Artice 44

by Inserting the waras s on wlvlnq notice by advertisement In & newspapet,’ after the word ‘may’ |n the flise
line of Article 4.

Artlcle 70

by Inserting the words *(or In the case ot a corporation, by [ts duly suthorlsed representstivel’ sfter the word
‘parson’ in the second line of Articte 7

Anticle 71

by Imaerting the words “tor in the case of o corp: . by Its duly P * ofter the word

“pirson® la the Séventh line of Artice 1.

Article 74

0} By Inserting the words tunless ¢ poil It teken s may from time ta time ba required under the Liting
Rules o1 8ny other applicable laws, rules or reguibtions or’ immediately before he word “uniess” n
Ihe second line of the first paragraph of Amglc 41

a oy Inserting the words “(or In the case o tve) after

+ word ‘person’ In the first tines of mb-pcugnphl (m) A (m of ‘Article 74 respectiveys
] by Inserting the words “» 0ol Is taken a3 may from time to Vime be required under the Listing R

or any other applicable laws, rules or regulations of untess’ Immediately alter the word ‘Unless
the beglnning of the second paragraph of Article 74

Artice 77

by inserting the words “required under the Lisling Rules or" after the word "Is* In the third Hne of Articie 77,

Article 84
by re-numbesing the exliting parsgraph (8] of Articte 84 a1 paragraph (C) of Article 84 and adding the
lul!owinq new paragraph (B) ang Hs merginal note to ARicle 84:

Where the Company has knowledge that sny member s, under any Yoting
*pplicable llw; and the Listing Rules from time to time, fequired to abstain from contravention to
voting on particular resolution or rastricted to votlag only for or only against  Listing Rules,
any auﬂ:ullv resolution, sny votes cast by o on behalf of such member in

of such req or shali not be counted,

Article 91(B)

[0 by deleting the words ‘a recognised clearing house within the meaning of the Secutities and Futurn
{Ciearing Houses) Ordinance of Chapter 420 of the Laws of Hong Kong’ In the first and second Iines
of Article 91(8) and substituting therefor the words “a ¢learing house”;

(i} by deleting the word "recognised” before tha words *clearing house® In the ninth line of Articla 91(B).
Article 95
by adding the iollowing new after (D) of Article 95

(E) An slternate Director shall be deemed to be the sgent’ of the Dlrector who appoints Aim, A
Director who appoints an siternate Director shall be vicsriously lable for any tort committed by ha
Director while acting In the capacity of siternate Director.

Atticte 101(A)

by deteting the words ‘a speclal resolution’ in paragraph tvil) of Article 101(A) and substituting therefor the
wards “an ordinary reselution”,

Artlcle 102{H)

by deleting Article 102{H) in its entlrety and substituting therefor the following new Article:

(H) A Director shaii not vote on sny of the Board 9 any contract, or
proposa! In which he or to his knowiedge any of his associates has a matestal In\nvnl and If he shal{ do $0 hls
vote thall not be counted nor shall he be counted [n the quorum pretent at the meeting, but this prohibition
shall not apply to any of the foliowing matters namely:

0 the giving of any security or iIndemnity elther ta the Direcior or his assoclatets] in respect of maney
lent or obligations incurred of undertaken by him of any of them at the request of or for the benefit
of the Company or sny of Its subsidlaries;

{h " the giving of any security or indemnlty to a third party In respect of &, debt or obligation of the
Company o any of lts subsidiarles for which the Directar or his associate(s) has/have himsell/
themselves assumed responsiblility In whole or In part snd whether alone or jointly under » guarantee
or Indemnity of by the giving of security;

iy any proposal concerning an offer of shares ot debentures or ather securlties of or by the Company of
any other company which the Company may promote or be Intergited In for subscription or purchase
where the Director or hls asioclate(s) [s/are or (1/sre to be Interested a5 a participant in the
underwriting or sub-underwriting of the offer;

[ any contract or arrangement in which the Director or his associatets) ii/are interested in the tame

. manner as other holders of shares or debentures of other securities of the Company by virtue only of
hissthelr interent In shares or debentures or other securitizy of the Company;
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New World Development Company L1m|ted:

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
{Stock Code: 17)

NOTlCE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NDTICE (S HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeling of the Company wihi be held at_Meeting Room 2018 (New Wlag),
Hong Kang Conventlon & Exhibition Centre, | Expo Drive, Wanchsi, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 7 December 2004 at 3:30 p.m. for
the foilowing purposes:

“wawn

To con;ldcr and sdopt the audited Sunm-nl of Accounts and the Report of Directors and Audltors for the year ended
30 June 2004,

To d«l-ve 2 final dividend, .

To re-elect Directors and authorise the Directors to fix thelr remuneration.

To re-appoint Jolnt Auditars and authorise the Directors to fix thelr remunerstion.
A1 special business 10 consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modil
Ordinary Resolution:

the following as an

ORDINARY AESOLUTION

"THAT: “

(] subject to paragraph (b} below, the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
heteinafier defined) of all the powers of the Company to repurchasa shares of HK$1,00 each in the capltal of
the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited {*Stock Exchange®) or any other stock exchange
on which the securlties of the Company may be listed and recognised by the Securities snd Futures
Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in connaction with alf
spplicsble faws and the requitements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securitles on the Stock Exchange
or of any other stock exchange as smended from time to time, be and Is hereby generslly and unconditionally
approved:

) the aggregste nominsl amount of shares of the Company which the Directors of the Company Is suthorised to
repurchase pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the lssued share capltal of the Company a1 at the date of passing this Resolution and the seld
spproval shall be imited accordingly: and

() for the purposes of this Resolution,

*Relevant Perfod” meani the period from the passing of this Resolution untll whicheves Is the esrlier of.
W the” conclusion of the next 2nnus! general meeting of the Company;
th) (he explrstion of the peribd within which the next annusl generzl meeting of the Company is
required by law to be heid:
) the date on which'the -umomy set out In this Resolution It revoked or varied by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders in genersi meeting.*
As special business to consider and, If thought fit, pass with or without
Ordinary Resolution:

the following as an

ORDINARY RESOLUTION
"THAT:

{a} subject to paragraph (c) below snd pursusnt to Section 578 of the Compenies Ordinance, the exercise by the
Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the
Company to atlot, ixsue and deal with additions} shares of HK$1.00 each in the capital of the Company and to
make or grant offers, agreements and options (including bonds, werrants and debentures convertible into
shures of the Company) which would or might require the exercise of tuch power be and Is hereby generalty
and, un:anamomny approved;

(b the approval lguph (a) above shall authorise the Directors of the Company during the Relevent Period
(as herernmev deﬂncd) @ of grant offers, agreements and optlons fincluding bonds, warrants and
debentures convertible lnlo shares of the Company) which would o might require the exercise of such power
after the end of the Relevant Perfod;

{0 the aggregste nominal emount of share capital allotted or sgreed canditionsily or unconditionally to be
allotted (whether pursuant to an option of otherwlse) and Issued by the Directors of the Company pursuant to
the approval in paragraph (a) sbove, otherwite than pursuant to i a Rights issue, (i) an Issue of shares b
scrip dividends pursuant to the articies of sysociation of the Campany from time to time; (ili) an issue of
shares under any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being sdopted for the grant or Issue to
employees of the Company and/or any of lts subsidiaries of shares or rights ko acquire shares of the Company;
of (I¥) an issue of shares upon conversion by the bondholders of thelr bonds into shares of the Company in
accordance with the terms and of an issue of nds by a special purpose
subsidiary wholly owned by the Company, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nomins! smount of the
Issued share capital of the Company as 8t the date of pasting this Resolution, and the ssld approval shall be
limited accardingly; and

(@} for the purpose of this Resolution,

“Relevant Period” mesns the perlod from tha passing of this Resolution until whichever 15 the earller of;

® the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

o the expiration of the perlod within which the next annusl geners meeting of the Comalny s
required by law to be held; s

@il the date on which the .ulhovlly set out in this Resolution s revoked or varled by an ofdinary

resolution of the shareholders (n general maeting; and
*Rights 155ue® means an offer of shares open for @ period fixed by the Directors of the Company to the hotders
of shares of the Company on the register on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of such
shates as at that date (subject ta such exclusions or other arrangements 85 the Directots of the Company may
deem necessary of expedient in celation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, ot the of any 9 Y body of any stock exchange
Tn, ahy terriiory outside Hong Kong APPIICable (0 the Companpi’

At spacial business to consider and, If thought ft, pass with or without
Ordinary Resolution:

the following as an

ORDINARY RESOLUTION
"THAT subject to the pasting of Resolution Nos. 5 and 6 set out in the notice convening this meeting, the general
mandate granted to the Directors of the Company to aliot and deal with additionsl shares pursusnt 1o Resolution No, &
set out In the notice convening this meeting be and is herety extended by the addition thereto of an_amount
representing the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of the Company repurchased by the Company
under the authority granted pursuant to Resolution No. S set out in the notice canvening this meeting, provided that
such amount of shares 1o repurchased shall not exceed 10% of the aggregste nominal amount of the issued share
capital of the Company 23 at the date of passing the sald Resolution.’

As special business to consider and, If thought fit, pass the following resolution as & Speclal Resotution:

SPECIAL RESOLUTION
“THAT the Artictes of Associatlon of the Company be and are hereby amended in the following manner:

(@ Article 2

(U3 by deleting the existing definitlon of ‘Hong Kong® in its entrety and substituting therefor the °

following new definition snd its marginel note:
"Hong Kong® shall mesn the Hong Kong Special Administrative Reglon of
The People’s Repubtic of China:
i by daieting the existing definition of *ssiocls
new definition and its marginal note:

Hong Kong.

In Its entirety and substituting therefor the foltawing

*assoclate” shall heve the meaning ascribed to It under the Listing Rules;  assoclate.
Gy by adding the words “for Administration” after the words ‘Chief Secratary” in the definiion of
*newspaper”
(v} by sdding the following new definitions and thelr marginal notes immediately sftér the definition of
statute:
"the sxm Exchange” shall mean The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong  Stock Exchange.
Limited: .

“the thlng Ruies shall mean the Rules Governing the Listing of Se:um(e;
ock Exchange and any amendments thereto for the tim

mlng n rom,

*clearing house’ shall mean a recognized clearing house within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chepter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong);

[ by deleting the existing definition of *statutes’ in fts entirety and substituting therefor the following
new definition and Its marglnal note:

Listing Rules.

clearing house.

“statutes’ shall mean the prevailing laws of Mong Kong [ncluding any  statutes,
statutory modificstions from time to time;
b} Article 6 .
[0} by deleting the words *The Stock £xchange of Hong Kong Limited" after the word “on* In the twelfth
and thirieenth lines of Articte 6 and substituting therefor the wards ‘the Stock Exchange”;
(il by deleting the words “The Stock Exchange of Mong Kong Limited” after the ward ‘on' in the

Nfteenth line of Article & and substituting therefor the worgs “the Stock Exchange”.

(c)

(d

te)

Q)

()]

U]

w

[C]

U]

{m)

n)

to)

)

(@)

[C]

* Articte 18

by deletlng Arucle 16 In ity entirety and substituting therefor the following new Article and Its marginal note:

Every person whose aame is entersd In tha register as » holder of any Share certificates,

sharer lhl" be antitled to recelve within such pariad of time a3 prescribed by the
Companies Ordinance or the Listing Rules after allotment or lodgement of a transfer
to him of those shares (or within such other pertod a1 the terms of issue shell
provide) one certificate for all those shares of any one class or sevaral certificat
h for one or mare of the shares of the class in question upon pryment, (1} In the
of an ullotmenn for nva certificate al .' the first of such sum {if sny) not

th from time to time by the Stock
Exchange or (H) in the clu of & transfer, of such sum (If any) not exceeding t
maximum amount prescrided from time to time by the Stock Exchange. In the case
of & share held Jointly by severs| persons, the Company shail not be bound to issue .
more than one certificate therefor and defivery of a certificate to one of severa)
Joint holders shall be suificient defivery to sll. A member who transfers some but
not all of the shares comprised In a certificate shall be entltled to a certificate for
the balance with a fee (If any) not the amount from
time to time by the Stock Exchange.

c;

Article 20

by deleting the words “HX$2.5 {or such other amount as may from time to tima be permitted under the rules
prescribed by The Stack Exchange of Hong Kong Limited)” ofter the word “exceading’ In the second iine of
Article 20 and substltuting therefor the words: ‘the maximum amount presctibed from time to time by the
Stock Exchange*.

Article 27

by Inserting the words *or by any means snd (n such manner as may be accepted by the Stock Exchange’ st
the end of Article 27.

Article 37

by deleting Article 37 in Its entlrety and substituting thecefor the following new Article ang (ts marginal note:

37. Al transfers of shares may be effected by an }nnmm!m of transfer (n Form of transfer.

the wsual or common form or in such other form as prescribed by the Stock
Exchange or in such form as the Board may accept and may be undu hand or, If
the transferor or transferee is a clearing house (within the mesning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kongl) or its nominee(s),
by hand of by machine imprinted signature or by such Sther mannes of sxecution
as the Bosrd may approve from time to time, Al Instruments of transfer must be
laft at the registered office or at puch other place as the Board may appoint.

Article 40

by deleting the words *HK$2.5 (or such other amount as may from time ta time be permitted under the rutes
prescribed by The Stock Exchange of Homg Kong Limited) or such lesser sum’ after the word “of* In the first,
line of paragraph (I} of Article 40 and substituting therefor the words “such sum not exceeding the mazimum
amount prescribed from time to time by the 5tock Exchange’.

Articte 43

by deleting the words ‘without charge® sfter the words 'lnued' and "him® in the third and sixth lines of
Article 43 and substituting therefor the words “with
from time to time by the Stock Exchange’ respectively.

Article 44

by Inserting the words *. on giving notice by advertisement in a newspaper.” efter the word *may” (n the first
line of Articie 44.

Articie 70

by lnsemng the words *(or In the case of a corporation, by Its duly authorised representative)’ after the word
“persan In the second line of Articie 70.

Asticle 71

by inserting tie words “(or In lhe case of & P . by its duly * after the word

’person” In the 1eventh line of Arﬂcl! 7.

Article 74 .

() by inzerting lhe uordl ‘unless & poll Is tlknn as may from tlmq t& time be required undar tha Listing
Rules or any of laws, rules o before the word ul\llu' in
the second nn. u! the first paragraph ef Aricie 74;

@ by inserting the words ‘(o in the case o “after

he word “person’ In the first lines of mb-pnuqupm (Hll ‘nd (Iv) cl Articte 74 respectively;

Gin by nuuung the words “a poil Is uxen a5 may from time to time be required under the Listing Rules
or any laws, rules or unfess* after the word ‘Unless’ at
the Mg\hnlng of the second plngnoh of Asticle 74,

Articte 77

by Interting the words ‘required under the Listing Rules or” sfter the word ‘is” In the third line of Article 77.
Anlde 84

the existing (8) of Article 84 as pmguph () of Article 64 and adding the
feuowlng new paragraph (B) and Its marginal note to Articte

(8) Where the Company has knowledge that Bry member i, under any
applicable laws and the Uisting Rules from time to time, required to abstain from
vating on any particular resolution or restricted ta voting only for or only agsinst
any pasticular resolution, any votes cast by or on behalf of such member in
o, shatl not be counted.

Yoting in
<ontravention to
Listing Rules.

Article 91(8)

[0 by deleting the words "a recognised clearing house within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
{Clearing Houses) Ordinance of Chapter 420 of the Laws of Hong Kong® In tha first and second lines
of Article $1(B) and substituting therefor the words *s clearing house®;

(0] by deleting the word “recognised® before the words *clearing house® in the ninth line of Article 1(B).
Article 95
by adding the lo\lawi»q new afer (D) of Articie 5
(E) An alternate Director shall be deemed to be the agent of the Director who appoints him. A
{}

Director who appoints an alternate Director shail be vicariously liabte for any tort committed by the niters
Director while lmng in the capacity of alternate Director,

Articie 161(A)

by deleting the words ‘s |pe<<-| resolution® in paragraph (vil) of Article 101(A) snd substltuting therefor the
words ‘an ordinary resol

Articie 102(M)

by deleting Article 102(H) in its entlrety and substituting therefor the following new Article:

{H} A Director shall not vote on any resoiution of the Board approving any contract, Arrangement or
proposal in which he or to his knowledge sny of his assoclates has s material interest, and if he shall do 5o his
vote shall not be counted nor shall he be counted in the quorum present st the meeting, but this prohibition
shall not apply to any of the following matters namety;

0] the glving of any security o indemnity either to the Director of hit s1soclate(s) in respect of money
tent or obligstions Incurred o undertaken by him or any of them st the request of o for the beneflt
of the Company or any of ks subsidlaries;

[ the glving of any security or indemnity to # third party In respect of 2 debt or obligation of the
Company or any of Its subsidiaries for which the Directar or his uuxlnu(n has/have himself/
themselves assumed responsiblilty in whole of in part and whether alone ot jointly under a guarantes
or Indemnity or by the glving of security;

i} any propasal concerning an offer of shares or debentures or other securities of or by the Company or
any other company which the Company may promote or be interested In for subscription or purchase
where the Director or his assoclate(s) is/are of (s/are to be Interested as a participant In the
underwriting or sub-underwriting of the offer;

(v} any contract or arrangement in which the Director or his associste(s) Is/are Interested in the tame
manner 81 other holders of shares or debentures or other securities of the Company by virtue enly of
Ats/thelr interest In shares of debentures or.other securities of the Company;
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) any propossl concerning any other company In which the Dirkctar or his sssoclatets) is/are
interested only, whether directly ot mdu«ny, #s an officer of executive or shareholder of In
which the Director or his are in shares of that company,
provided that the Director and any of hls are not in
In 5 per cent or more of the issued shares of any class of such company (or of any third
company through which his Interest or that of his assoclates is derived) ot of the voting rights;

vl any proposal or mrrangement concerning the benefit of smployees of the Company or Its
subsidiaries including the adoption, modification or operation of a pension fund or retirement,
death or disabliity benefits scheme which relates both to the Directors, his associater and
ampioyees of the Company or any of Its tubsidiaries and does not give the Director of his
assocista(s), as such 2ny privilege or advantage not genesally accorded to the ciass of persans 1o
which such scheme or fund relates; and

' i) any proposal or m.ngmm concerning the b-neﬂl of employnu of the Complny or its

. subsidiaries including t option, hare scheme
ot .”K share incentive or share eptlm scheme \mdt! whl:h lhe Dlve:tor or his um:me(s) may
benefht.

o) Article 1020
by deleting Article 102(1) In Its entirety and substituting therefor the following new Article:

w A :ompony shall be deemed to be a (nmplny In which a Director and/or his sisociate(s)
ownis} 5 per cent. or more If snd 30 Jang as (but only If and so lang as) he and/or his nssoclste(s) is/are
(tllh" dlunly or Indirectly) the holder(s) of or beneficlatly interested in 5 per cent. or more of any class
of the equity share capitsl of such company (or of any third company through which his interest or that
of any o B wssocines s derlved) or of the voting rights avaliable to memberts of such company. for the
purpose of this paragraph there shall be disregarded any shares held by a Director or his associate(s) as
B bare or custodian trustes and In which he or any of them has no beneficlal interest, any shares comprised
b In a trust In which the est of the Director or his (s) {s/are in reversion ol remalnder If and so
N long a3 some other Is entitied to receive thereof, a y thares comprised in an
authorised wnit trust stheme In which the Director or hl! associate(s) is/are interested only as a unit
holder and any shares which tarry no voting right at peneral meetings and very restrictive dividend and
veturn of capital right,

® Anticle 12017
by delating Anticle 1020} In Its entirety snd substituting therafor the following new Articie:

) Where a company in which 2 Director and/or his assoclate(s) has an Interest of § per cent. or
more I3 materally Interested (n & teansaction, then that Director andfor his assoclatels) shall stso be
deemed materially Interestad in such transaction.

[} Article 102(K)
by dﬂc\lng Am:l- 102(K) In s nmlmy snd substituting thersfor the following new Article:

question shall srise at any meeting of the Board 83 to the materiality of the Interest of

Dl:enov (o\hﬂ than the chalrman of the maeting) and/or his associate(s) or a3 to the entitlement of any
Dlnnav {other than such chairman) to vote or be counted in the quorum and such question fs not
resoived by his voluntarlly sgreelng to abstain from voting or not to be counted In the quoru, such
Guestion shall be raferred to the chalrman of the meeting and his ruling in relation to such other Director
shall be final and conclusive except In a case where tha nature or extant of the interest of the Director
and/or his associate(s) concerned as known to such Dlrector hes not baen falrly disclosed to the Bosrd. If
any guestion as aforesald shell arise in respect of the chalrman of the meating such question shall be
decided by a resolution of the Board (for which purpose such chairman shall be counted In the quorum
but shall not vote thereon} and such resolution shall ba final end conclusive except in a case where the
nature or extent of tha Interest of such chalrman a3 known to such chairman has not been falrly disclosed

i to the Board.
! [ Article 102(1)
by deleting Article 102(L) in its entiraty snd substituting therefor the following naw Article:
(L) The Company may by ardinary ratify sny not duly

ason of » comnvtmlon of this Anticle provided that no Director who Is or whose assoclates) Iy
M I quch shall vote upon such ordinary resofution In respect of any shi
in the Company In whl:h he/they Is/are interested.

T tw Article 107 _
hy delating Article 107 in its entirety and substituting therefor the following new Article and its marginal

No person, othér then & retilng Olrector, shall, unless  Notice to be glven
r-commmded by the Board for election, be eligitle for election to the office when person

of Director at sny general meeting, unless notice in writing of the Intention to  praposed for etection.
propote thst person for election as a Director snd no\l:e In writing by that

person of his willingness to be eiected shall have been given ta the Company

provided that the minimum length of the period, during which such notices

ate given, shall be at least seven days, The perlod for lodgmant of such notices

shall comrmence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the

general meeting appolnted for such election and end no fater than seven days

prior to the date of such general meeting. )

] Articte 109
by deleting the words ‘speclal resolution” in the nm line of Article 109 anﬂ s mnvglnﬂ note and
substituting therefor the words “ordinary resolution”,

y} | Arnicle 181
by defeting the words "The Stock Exchange of Mong Knng LUmited® In sub-parsgraph um of Article 161
and substttuting therefor the words “the Stock Exchang

] Article 172
by deleting the words *Rules Govarning the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited* In the second and third lines of Article 172 and substituting therefor the words ‘Listing Rules®,

(a8} Article 183(A)

103 by deleting the words ‘paragraph (¢) of the proviso to Section 165 of the Companies Ordinance’
in the third line and the fourth line of Article 183(A) and substituting therefor the words “Section
165(2) of the Companies Ordinance’;

(0] by adding the words ‘and every Auditors® after the word “officer” In the fist line of Article
183(A); and
{m by adding the words *or Auditors* after the word *officer’ In the sixth (ine of Article $83(A).

{bb} Articie 184 . .
: by adding the following new Articie and marginat note immediately after Article 183:

184, The Company shall have power to purchase and maintsln for Uiability insurance.

any Director or cther officer, or Auditors of the Company:

n insurance against any llabllity to the Company, & related company or
any other party in respect of any negligence, default, breach of duty
ot breach of trust {save for freud) of which he may be guilty In
relation to the Company or a reiated company: and

i Insurance against any llability fncurred by him in defending any
proceedings, whether clvil of criminal, taken against him Ffor any
negligence, defsult, breach of duty or breach of trust (including fraud)
of which he may be gullty In relation to the Company or a related
company.

For the purpose of this Article 184, ‘refated company’ means any company

which is the Company’s subsidlary or holding company or a subsidlary of the

Company’s holding company.”

- By Order of the Board
LEUNG Chi-Kin, Stawart
Compeny Secretary

Mong Kong, 29 October 2004

Notes: .
1. Any member of the Company antitled to attend and vote st tha meeting is entitled to appoint one or more
praxies to attend and, on » poll, vote instead of him, A proxy nred not be a membar of the Company.

2 To be valld, a proxy form, together with any power of attorney or other authority (If any) under which It Is signed,

. or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged with the registered office of the Company 2t 30th Floor, New
3 World Tower, 18 Quaen's Road Central, Hong Kong not iass than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding
. the meeting of the adjourned meeting (as the case may be).

3 The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 1 December 2004 10 Tuesday, 7
Decembes 2004, both days Inclusive, during which perlod na transfer of shares will be effecied. In order 1o
determine the entittement to attend and vote #t the Annusl General Meeting, afl share trensfers accompanted by
the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company's Share Reglistrars, Tengls Limited at Ground
Floor, Bank of £a3t As View Centre, 6 Gloucester Road, Wanchal, Hong Kong for reglstration not later
than 4:00 p.m, on Tuesdby, 30 November 2004.

As at the date ol lhh nmlu. (l) the executlve directors of the Company sre Dato’ Dr. CRENG Yu-Tung, Dr. CHENG Kar-Shun,

K.nry Dr. SIN KI D Mr. LIANG Chong-Hou, David and Mi. LEUNG Chi-Kin, Stewsrt; (b} the non-executlve directors

he (umpa NG Yoe-Pul, M. CHENG Kar-Shing, Peter, Mr, CHOW Kwai-Cheung, Mr. HO Hau-H, amiiton

lnd Mv LIANG (hwng mu, Thumu and {c) the independent non-executive ditectors of the Com ere Lord SANDBERG,
Michael, Mr, YEUNG Ping-Leung, Howard, Dr, CHA Mou-! Slng. Paysan, /5, Mr, CHA Mou-Zing, Victor (a3 alternate director to
Dr. (HA Mou-Sing, Payson) and Mr. LEE Luen-Wal, John,

EREHBRFZIZR)BRLE" -
CREDIT CARD DNA SECURITY SYSTEM (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

{Incorporated In Bermuda with limited lmbllny}
(Stock Code: 1051)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS REREBY GIVEN that the Aanual General Mezting of Credit Card DNA Security System
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) will be held at Board Room II, M/F., Grand Hyait Hong Koag, 1

arbour Road, Hoog Kong on Friday, 3 December 2004 at 10:00 a.m, for the following purposes:

To receive and consider the audited Statements of Accounts and Reports of the Directors and
Auditora for the year ended 30 June 2004,

To re-clect Ditectors and to authorise the Board of Dnreclon to fix their remuneration.
To re-appoint Auditors asd to authorise the Board of Directors to fix their remuncration.

As special business, 10 consider and, if thought fit, p-u the following resolutions as Ordinary
Resolutions:

(A)

(B)

©

“THAT: .

(a) subject to peragraph (c) below, the exercise by the directors of the Company
(“Directors”) during the Relevant Period (as hercioafter defined) of all the powers of
ihe Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares of the Company (“Shares™)
or securities convertible into Shares, or options, warrants or similer rights to subscribe
for any Shares, and to make or grant offers, agreements and options which might
require the exercise of such power be and is hereby generaily and unconditionally
approved;

(b}  the approval in paragraph (a) above shall be in addition to any other authorisations
given to the Directors and shall authorise the Directors during the Relevant Period 1o
make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the exercise of such
powers afier the end of the Relevant Period;

{c) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be ellotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
Directors pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above, otherwise thaa pursuant ta:
[ a Rights Issue (a3 bereinafter deﬁned): '

(ii)  the ise of rights of sub sion under terms of any warrants
-issued by the Company or any l:cuﬂuel which arc convertible into Shares;

(tii) the exercise of any option schems or similar arrangement for the time beiog
adopted for the grant or issue to officers and/or employees of the Company apd/
or apy of its subsidiaries of Shares or rights to acquire Shares: and

(iv) any secrip dividend or simitar arrangement providing for the allotment of shares
In licu of the whole or part of a dividend on the Shares in uccordance with the
bye-laws of the Company,

shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the share capital of the Company in issife as at the date

of this Resolution, and the said approval shali be limited. Accordmgly, and

{d) for the purpose of this Resolution:

"Relcvnnt Period™ means the period from the passiog of this Rnolunnn untl] whichevet
is the carller of:
() the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;
(i1}  the expiration of the period within which (he next.annual general meeting of the
Company Is required by law or the bye-laws of the Company 1o be held; or
(iil} the revocation or varistion of the authority given usder this Resolution by
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
"“Rights Issue™ means the allotment, issue or grant of Shares pursuant to'an offer of
Shares opea for a period fixed by the Directors to holders of the Shares or any class
Lhereof oisthe-register ofi a fixed record date is-proportion to their theo holdings of
such Shares or class thereof (subject to such {usion or ather arr as the
Directors may deem necessary or expedient it relation to fractional entitlements or
having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the taws of, or the requirements
of, any recognised regulatory body or stock exchange in any (erritory outside Hong
Kong).”

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the directors of the Company
{“Directors”) during the Reievant Period (as Hereinafier defined) of all the powers of
the Company to repurchase shares of the Company (“Shares”} on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Bxchange™) or on any other stock exchange on which
the Shares may be listed and recognised for this purpose by The Securities end Futures
Commission o! Hong Knng nnd the Stock Exchange under The Hong Kong Code on
Share Rep R ised Stock E ") and, subject to and in accordance
with all applicable laws and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange as amended from time to time or that of any other Recognised Stock
Exchange, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

{b)" the aggregate nominal amount of the Sheres which may be repurchased pursuant to the

approval in paragraph (e) above shail not exceed 10 per cent, of the aggregate of the
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of passing of
thiz Resolution and the said app shall be limited eccordingly; and
(¢)  {or the purpose of this Resolution:
“Refevant Period” means the period from the paulng nf this Resolution unti] whichever
is the earlier of;
(i)  the conclusion of the next asnual geperal mee\ing of the Compeoy;
(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next-annual general meeting of the
Company is required by law or the bye-laws of the Company to be held; or
(iii) the revocation or variation of the authority given undet this Resolution by
. ordinary resolution of the sharcholders of the Compeny in general mesting."

“THAT conditional upon the passing of the Resolutions Nos, 4(A) and 4(B) as set out in the

natice of this Mecting, the general mandate granted to the directors of the Company
{“Directors”) to excrcige the powers of the Company to ellot, issus and otherwise deal with
shates of the Company pursuant to Resolution No. 4{A) above be and is hereby extended by
the addition to the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company which may
be allotted by the Directors pursusnt to such general d an amount rep ing the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company repurchesed by the Company

under the authority granted pursuant to Resolution No. 4(B) above, provided that such amount *

shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate of the nominal amount of the share capital of
the Company in issue at the date of passing of this Resolution.”
By order of the Board
Tam Pul Ling, Elaine
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 29 October 2004

Notes:

1,

2.

Any member entitled to attend and vote nt the above Meeting is estitled to appoint one or more proxies in attend
and, on a poll, vote in his atead. A proxy need not bs 8 member of the Company.

To be valid, & form of proxy. together with the power of attofney of other authority (if any) under which ki

or & notrially certified copy thereof, must be deposited at the Company's principal plsce of business at 11th Floor,
Tai Sang Bank Building, 130 Des Voeux Road Ceniral, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for
holding the Meeting.
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